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INVESTMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES
 

The investment objective and the principal investment strategies of the Fund, as well as the principal risks associated with such investment strategies, are set forth in the
Prospectus. Certain additional information regarding the investment program of the Fund is set forth below.

 
FUNDAMENTAL POLICIES

 
The Fund’s fundamental policies, which are listed below, may only be changed by the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund. At

the present time the Shares are the only outstanding voting securities of the Fund. As defined by the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “Investment Company
Act”), the vote of a “majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund” means the vote, at an annual or special meeting of the shareholders of the Fund (the
“Shareholders”), duly called, (i) of 67% or more of the Shares represented at such meeting, if the holders of more than 50% of the outstanding Shares are present in person or
represented by proxy or (ii) of more than 50% of the outstanding Shares, whichever is less. No other policy is a fundamental policy of the Fund, except as expressly stated.
Within the limits of the fundamental policies of the Fund, the management of the Fund has reserved freedom of action. The Fund may not:

 
1) Issue any senior security, except to the extent permitted by Section 18 of the Investment Company Act, as interpreted, modified, or otherwise permitted by the

Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) or any other applicable authority.
 

2) Borrow money, except to the extent permitted by Section 18 of the Investment Company Act, as interpreted, modified, or otherwise permitted by the SEC or any
other applicable authority. This investment restriction does not apply to borrowings from affiliated investment companies or other affiliated persons of the Fund
to the extent permitted by the Investment Company Act, the SEC or any other applicable authority.

 
3) Underwrite securities of other issuers, except insofar as the Fund may be deemed to be an underwriter under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the

“Securities Act”), in connection with the disposition of its portfolio securities.
 

4) Make loans, except through purchasing fixed-income securities (including whole loans, whether senior or subordinated, “Payment-In-Kind” or “PIK” securities,
other mezzanine securities or participations in any of the foregoing), lending portfolio securities, or entering into repurchase agreements in a manner consistent
with the investment policies of the Fund, or as otherwise permitted under the Investment Company Act. This investment restriction does not apply to loans to
affiliated investment companies or other affiliated persons of the Fund to the extent permitted by the Investment Company Act, the SEC or any other applicable
authority.

 
5) Purchase, hold or deal in real estate, except that the Fund may invest in securities that are secured by real estate, including, without limitation, mortgage-related

securities, or that are issued by companies or partnerships that invest or deal in real estate or real estate investment trusts, and may hold and dispose of real estate
acquired by the Fund as a result of the ownership of securities or other permitted investments.

 
6) Invest in commodities and commodity contracts, except that the Fund (i) may purchase and sell non-U.S. currencies, options, swaps, futures and forward

contracts, including those related to indexes, options and options on indexes, as well as other financial instruments and contracts that are commodities or
commodity contracts, (ii) may also purchase or sell commodities if acquired as a result of ownership of securities or other instruments, (iii) may invest in
commodity pools and other entities that purchase and sell commodities and commodity contracts, and (iv) may make such investments as otherwise permitted by
the Investment Company Act.
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7) Invest 25% or more of the value of its total assets in the securities of issuers that the Adviser determines are engaged in any single industry, except that U.S.
government securities and repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. government securities may be purchased without limitation. This investment restriction
does not apply to investments by the Fund in Portfolio Funds (or in another comparable investment pool). The Fund may invest in Portfolio Funds that may
concentrate their assets in one or more industries. The Fund will not invest 25% or more of its assets in a Portfolio Fund or Funds, in aggregate, that it knows
concentrates its assets in a single industry.

 
With respect to these investment restrictions and other policies described in this SAI or the Prospectus, if a percentage restriction is adhered to at the time of an

investment or transaction, a later change in percentage resulting from a change in the values of investments or the value of the Fund’s total assets, unless otherwise stated, will
not constitute a violation of such restriction or policy. The Fund’s investment policies and restrictions do not apply to the activities and the transactions of the Portfolio Funds,
but will apply to investments made by the Fund directly (or any account consisting solely of the Fund’s assets).

 
The investment objective of the Fund is not a fundamental policy of the Fund and may be changed by the Board of Trustees of the Fund (the “Board”) without the vote

of a majority (as defined by the Investment Company Act) of the Fund’s outstanding Shares.
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES OF THE FUND AND THE RELATED RISKS
 

As discussed in the Prospectus, the Fund’s investments consist primarily of: (i) direct investments in the equity or debt of a company (“Direct Equity Investments” or
“Direct Credit Investments,” respectively, and together, “Direct Investments”); (ii) primary subscriptions to closed-end private funds, including without limitation, funds-of-
funds (“Portfolio Funds”) managed by third-party managers (“Portfolio Fund Managers”); (iii) secondary purchases of Portfolio Funds managed by Portfolio Fund Managers
and other private assets (together, “Secondary Investments”); (iv) investments in listed private equity companies, funds or other vehicles (“Listed PE Investments”); or (v)
programmatic investment relationships with asset managers outside of their commingled private funds (“Opportunistic Investments”). This section provides additional
information about various types of investments and investment techniques that may be employed by the Fund or by Portfolio Funds in which the Fund invests. Many of the
investments and techniques described in this section may be based in part on the existence of a public market for the relevant securities. To that extent, such investments and
techniques are not expected to represent the principal investments or techniques of the majority of the Fund or of the Portfolio Funds; however, there is no limit on the types of
investments the Portfolio Funds may make and certain Portfolio Funds may use such investments or techniques extensively. Similarly, there are few limits on the types of
investments the Fund may make. Accordingly, the descriptions in this section cannot be comprehensive. Any decision to invest in the Fund should take into account (i) the
possibility that the Portfolio Funds may make virtually any kind of investment, (ii) that the Fund has similarly broad latitude in the kinds of investments it may make (subject to
the fundamental policies described above) and (iii) that all such investments will be subject to related risks, which can be substantial.
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Equity Securities
 

The Fund’s and/or a Portfolio Fund’s portfolio may include investments in common stocks, preferred stocks, and convertible securities of U.S. and foreign issuers. The
Fund and/or a Portfolio Fund also may invest in depositary receipts relating to foreign securities. Equity securities fluctuate in value, often based on factors unrelated to the value
of the issuer of the securities. Given the private markets focus of the Fund, there is expected to be no liquid market for a majority of such investments.

 
Common Stock
 

Common stock or other common equity issued by a corporation or other entity generally entitles the holder to a pro rata share of the profits, if any, of the entity without
preference over any other shareholder or claims of shareholders, after making required payments to holders of the entity’s preferred stock and other senior equity. Common stock
usually carries with it the right to vote and frequently an exclusive right to do so.

 
Preferred Stock
 

Preferred stock or other preferred equity generally has a preference as to dividends and, in the event of liquidation, to an issuer’s assets, over the issuer’s common stock
or other common equity, but it ranks junior to debt securities in an issuer’s capital structure. Preferred stock generally pays dividends in cash or additional shares of preferred
stock at a defined rate but, unlike interest payments on debt securities, preferred stock dividends are generally payable only if declared by the issuer’s board of directors.
Dividends on preferred stock may be cumulative, meaning that, in the event the issuer fails to make one or more dividend payments on the preferred stock, no dividends may be
paid on the issuer’s common stock until all unpaid preferred stock dividends have been paid. Preferred stock may also be subject to optional or mandatory redemption
provisions.

 
Convertible Securities
 

Convertible securities are bonds, debentures, notes, preferred stock, or other securities that may be converted into or exchanged for a specified amount of common
equity of the same or different issuer within a specified period of time at a specified price or based on a specified formula. In many cases, a convertible security entitles the
holder to receive interest or a dividend that is generally paid or accrued until the convertible security matures or is redeemed, converted or exchanged. Convertible securities
have unique investment characteristics in that they generally (i) have higher yields (i.e., rates of interest or dividends) than common stocks, but lower yields than comparable
non-convertible securities, (ii) are less subject to fluctuation in value than the underlying common stock into which they are convertible due to their fixed-income characteristics
and (iii) provide the potential for capital appreciation if the market price of the underlying common stock increases. The Fund’s and/or the Portfolio Funds’ investments in
convertible securities are expected to primarily be in private convertible securities, but may be in public convertible securities.

 
The value of a convertible security is primarily a function of its “investment value” (determined by its yield in comparison with the yields of other securities of

comparable maturity and quality that do not have a conversion privilege) and its “conversion value” (determined by reference to the security’s anticipated worth, at market value,
if converted into the underlying common stock). The investment value of a convertible security is influenced by changes in interest rates, with investment value typically
declining as interest rates increase and increasing as interest rates decline. The credit standing of the issuer and other factors may also increase or decrease the convertible
security’s value. If the conversion value is low relative to the investment value, the convertible security is valued principally by reference to its investment value. To the extent
the value of the underlying common stock approaches or exceeds the conversion value, the convertible security will be valued increasingly by reference to its conversion value.
Generally, the conversion value decreases as the convertible security approaches maturity. Where no market exists for a convertible security and/or the underlying common
stock, such investments may be difficult to value. A public convertible security generally will sell at a premium over its conversion value by the extent to which investors place
value on the right to acquire the underlying common stock while holding a fixed-income security.
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A convertible security may in some cases be subject to redemption at the option of the issuer at a price established in the convertible security’s governing instrument. If a
convertible security is called for redemption, the holder will generally have a choice of tendering the security for redemption, converting it into common stock prior to
redemption, or selling it to a third party. Any of these actions could have a material adverse effect and result in losses to the Fund.

 
Derivative Instruments
 

Although not a principal investment strategy, the Fund or the Portfolio Funds may use financial instruments known as derivatives. A derivative is generally defined as an
instrument whose value is derived from, or based upon, some underlying index, reference rate (such as interest rates or currency exchange rates), security, commodity or other
asset. Following are descriptions of certain derivatives that the Portfolio Funds may use. The same descriptions apply to the Fund, mutatis mutandis, to the extent that it engages
in derivatives transactions. Certain risks associated with derivatives are described under “INVESTMENT RELATED RISKS—Derivative Instruments” in the Prospectus.

 
Options and Futures
 

A Portfolio Fund may utilize options contracts, futures contracts, and options on futures contracts. It also may use so-called “synthetic” options or other derivative
instruments written by broker-dealers or other financial intermediaries. Options transactions may be effected on securities exchanges or in the over-the-counter market. When
options are purchased over-the-counter, the Portfolio Fund’s portfolio bears the risk that the counterparty that wrote the option will be unable or unwilling to perform its
obligations under the option contract. Such options may also be illiquid, and, in such cases, a Portfolio Fund may have difficulty closing out its position. Over-the-counter
options purchased and sold by the Portfolio Fund also may include options on baskets of specific securities.

 
A Portfolio Fund may purchase call and put options on specific securities or currencies and may write and sell covered or uncovered call and put options for hedging

purposes and non-hedging purposes to pursue its investment objective. A put option gives the purchaser of the option the right to sell, and obligates the writer to buy, the
underlying security at a stated exercise price at any time prior to the expiration of the option. A call option gives the purchaser of the option the right to buy, and obligates the
writer to sell, the underlying security at a stated exercise price at any time prior to the expiration of the option.

 
A covered call option is a call option with respect to which a Portfolio Fund owns the underlying security. The sale of such an option exposes the Portfolio Fund, during

the term of the option, to possible loss of opportunity to realize appreciation in the market price of the underlying security and to the possibility that it might hold the underlying
security in order to protect against depreciation in the market price of the security during a period when it might have otherwise sold the security. The seller of a covered call
option assumes the risk of a decline in the market price of the underlying security below the purchase price of the underlying security less the premium received and gives up the
opportunity for gain on the underlying security above the exercise price of the option. The seller of an uncovered call option assumes the risk of a theoretically unlimited
increase in the market price of the underlying security above the exercise price of the option.

 
A covered put option is a put option with respect to which the seller has a short position in the underlying security. The seller of a covered put option assumes the risk of

an increase in the market price of the underlying security above the sales price (in establishing the short position) of the underlying security plus the premium received and gives
up the opportunity for gain on the underlying security below the exercise price of the option. If the seller of the put option owns a put option covering an equivalent number of
shares with an exercise price equal to or greater than the exercise price of the put written, the position is “fully hedged” if the option owned expires at the same time or later than
the option written. The seller of an uncovered put option assumes the risk of a decline in the market price of the underlying security below the exercise price of the option. The
seller of a put option may also be required to place cash or liquid securities in a segregated account to ensure compliance with its obligation to purchase the underlying security.
The sale of such an option exposes the Portfolio Fund during the term of the option to a decline in price of the underlying security while depriving the Portfolio Fund of the
opportunity to invest the segregated assets.
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A Portfolio Fund may close out a position when writing options by purchasing an option on the same security with the same exercise price and expiration date as the
option that it has previously written on the security. The Portfolio Fund will realize a profit or loss if the amount paid to purchase an option is less or more, as the case may be,
than the amount received from the sale thereof. To close out a position as a purchaser of an option, the Portfolio Fund would generally make a similar “closing sale transaction,”
which involves liquidating its position by selling the option previously purchased. However, if deemed advantageous, the Portfolio Fund would be entitled to exercise the option.

 
A Portfolio Fund may enter into stock futures contracts, interest rate futures contracts, and currency futures contracts in U.S. domestic markets or on exchanges located

outside the United States. Foreign markets may offer advantages such as trading opportunities or arbitrage possibilities not available in the United States. Foreign markets,
however, may have greater risk potential than domestic markets. For example, some foreign exchanges are principal markets so that no common clearing facility exists, and an
investor may look only to the broker for performance of the contract. Transactions on foreign exchanges may include both commodities that are traded on domestic exchanges
and those that are not. Unlike trading on domestic commodity exchanges, trading on foreign commodity exchanges is not regulated by the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading
Commission (the “CFTC”). Therefore, the CFTC does not have the power to compel enforcement of the rules of the foreign exchange or the laws of the foreign country.
Moreover, such laws or regulations will vary depending on the foreign country in which the transaction occurs. For these reasons, the Portfolio Funds may not be afforded
certain of the protections that apply to domestic transactions, including the right to use domestic alternative dispute resolution procedures. In particular, funds received from
customers to margin foreign futures transactions may not be provided the same protections as funds received to margin futures transactions on domestic exchanges. In addition,
the price of any foreign futures or option contract and, therefore, the potential profit and loss resulting from that contract, may be affected by any fluctuation in the foreign
exchange rate between the time the order is placed and the foreign futures contract is liquidated or the foreign option contract is liquidated or exercised.

 
In addition to futures contracts traded on U.S. domestic markets or exchanges that are regulated by the CFTC or on foreign exchanges, Portfolio Funds may also trade

certain futures either over-the-counter or on trading facilities such as derivatives transaction execution facilities, exempt boards of trade or electronic trading facilities that are
licensed and/or regulated to varying degrees by the CFTC. In addition, certain single stock futures and narrow-based security index futures may be traded over-the-counter or on
trading facilities such as contract markets, derivatives transaction execution facilities and electronic trading facilities that are licensed and/or regulated to varying degrees by
both the CFTC and the SEC or on foreign exchanges.

 
Trading in futures involves risk of loss to the Portfolio Fund that could materially adversely affect the net asset value of the Fund. No assurance can be given that a

liquid market will exist for any particular futures contract at any particular time. Many futures exchanges and boards of trade limit the amount of fluctuation permitted in futures
contract prices during a single trading day by regulations referred to as “daily price fluctuation limits” or “daily limits.” Once the daily limit has been reached in a particular
contract, no trades may be made that day at a price beyond that limit or trading may be suspended for specified periods during the trading day. Futures contract prices could
move to the limit for several consecutive trading days with little or no trading, thereby preventing prompt liquidation of futures positions and potentially subjecting the Portfolio
Fund to substantial losses, which may result in losses to the Fund. In addition, the CFTC and various exchanges impose speculative position limits on the number of positions
that each Portfolio Fund may indirectly hold or control in certain particular futures or options contracts. Many of the major U.S. exchanges have eliminated speculative position
limits and have substituted position accountability rules that would permit the Portfolio Funds to trade without restriction as long as such Portfolio Funds can demonstrate the
positions acquired were not acquired for the purpose of manipulating the market.
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Successful use of futures by a Portfolio Fund depends on its ability to correctly predict movements in the direction of the relevant market, and, to the extent the
transaction is entered into for hedging purposes, to ascertain the appropriate correlation between the transaction being hedged and the price movements of the futures contract.

 
The prices of all derivative instruments, including futures and options prices, are highly volatile. Price movements of forward contracts, futures contracts, and other

derivative contracts in which a Portfolio Fund may invest are influenced by, among other things: interest rates; changing supply and demand relationships; trade, fiscal,
monetary, and exchange control programs and policies of governments; and national and international political and economic events and policies. In addition, governments from
time to time intervene, directly and by regulation, in certain markets, particularly those currencies and interest rate-related futures and options. Such intervention often is
intended directly to influence prices and may, together with other factors, cause all of such markets to move rapidly in the same direction because of, among other things, interest
rate fluctuations. Portfolio Funds are also subject to the risk of the failure of any of the exchanges on which their positions trade or of their clearinghouses.

 
A stock index future obligates a Portfolio Fund to pay, or entitles it to receive, an amount of cash equal to a fixed dollar amount specified in the futures contract

multiplied by the difference between the settlement price of the contract on the contract’s last trading day and the value of the index based on the stock prices of the securities
that comprise it at the opening of trading in such securities on the next business day. An interest rate future obligates a Portfolio Fund to purchase or sell an amount of a specific
debt security at a future date at a specific price. A currency future obligates a Portfolio Fund to purchase or sell an amount of a specific currency at a future date at a specific
price.

 
Call and Put Options on Securities Indexes
 

A Portfolio Fund may purchase and sell call and put options on stock indexes listed on national securities exchanges or traded in the over-the-counter market for hedging
and non-hedging purposes to pursue its investment objectives. A stock index fluctuates with changes in the market values of the stocks included in the index. Accordingly,
successful use by a Portfolio Fund of options on stock indexes will be subject to the ability to correctly predict movements in the direction of the stock market generally or of a
particular industry or market segment. This requires different skills and techniques than predicting changes in the price of individual stocks.

 
Yield Curve Options
 

A Portfolio Fund may enter into options on the yield “spread” or differential between two securities. Such transactions are referred to as “yield curve” options. In
contrast to other types of options, a yield curve option is based on the difference between the yields of designated securities, rather than the prices of the individual securities,
and is settled through cash payments. Accordingly, a yield curve option is profitable to the holder if this differential widens (in the case of a call) or narrows (in the case of a
put), regardless of whether the yields of the underlying securities increase or decrease. The trading of yield curve options is subject to all of the risks associated with the trading
of other types of options. In addition, such options present a risk of loss even if the yield of one of the underlying securities remains constant, or if the spread moves in a
direction or to an extent which was not anticipated.
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Rights and Warrants
 

A Portfolio Fund may invest in rights and warrants. Rights (sometimes referred to as “subscription rights”) and warrants may be purchased separately or may be
received as part of a distribution in respect of, or may be attached to, other securities that a Portfolio Fund has purchased. Rights and warrants are securities that give the holder
the right, but not the obligation, to purchase equity securities of the company issuing the rights or warrants, or a related company, at a fixed price either on a date certain or
during a set period. Typically, rights have a relatively short term (e.g., two to four weeks), whereas warrants can have much longer terms. At the time of issue, the cost of a right
or warrant is substantially less than the cost of the underlying security itself.

 
Particularly in the case of warrants, price movements in the underlying security are generally magnified in the price movements of the warrant. This effect would enable

a Portfolio Fund to gain exposure to the underlying security with a relatively low capital investment but increases the Portfolio Fund’s risk in the event of a decline in the value
of the underlying security and can result in a complete loss of the amount invested in the warrant. In addition, the price of a warrant tends to be more volatile than, and may not
correlate exactly to, the price of the underlying security. If the market price of the underlying security is below the exercise price of the warrant on its expiration date, the warrant
will generally expire without value. The equity security underlying a warrant is authorized at the time the warrant is issued or is issued together with the warrant, which may
result in losses to the Fund. Investing in warrants can provide a greater potential for profit or loss than an equivalent investment in the underlying security, and, thus, can be a
speculative investment. The value of a warrant may decline because of a decline in the value of the underlying security, the passage of time, changes in interest rates or in the
dividend or other policies of the company whose equity underlies the warrant or a change in the perception as to the future price of the underlying security, or any combination
thereof. Warrants and rights do not carry with them the right to dividends or voting rights with respect to the securities that they entitle the holder to purchase, and they do not
represent any rights in the assets of the issuer.

 
Swaps
 

A Portfolio Fund may enter into equity, interest rate, index, currency rate, total return and/or other types of swap agreements. These transactions are entered into in an
attempt to obtain a particular return when it is considered desirable to do so, possibly at a lower cost than if a Portfolio Fund had invested directly in the asset that yielded the
desired return. Swap agreements are two-party contracts entered into primarily by institutional investors for periods ranging from a few weeks to more than a year. In a standard
swap transaction, two parties agree to exchange the returns (or differentials in rates of return) earned or realized on particular predetermined investments or instruments, which
may be adjusted for an interest factor. The gross returns to be exchanged or “swapped” between the parties are generally calculated with respect to a “notional amount” (i.e., the
return on or increase in value of a particular dollar amount invested at a particular interest rate, in a particular foreign currency, or in a “basket” of securities representing a
particular index).

 
Interest Rate, Mortgage and Credit Swaps
 

A Portfolio Fund may enter into interest rate swaps. Forms of swap agreements include interest rate caps, under which, in return for a premium, one party agrees to
make payments to the other to the extent interest rates exceed a specified rate or “cap”; interest rate floors, under which, in return for a premium, one party agrees to make
payments to the other to the extent interest rates fall below a specified level or “floor”; and interest rate collars, under which a party sells a cap and purchases a floor or vice
versa in an attempt to protect itself against interest rate movements exceeding given minimum or maximum levels. Mortgage swaps are similar to interest rate swaps in that they
represent commitments to pay and receive interest. The notional principal amount, however, is tied to a reference pool or pools of mortgages. Credit swaps involve the receipt of
floating or fixed note payments in exchange for assuming potential credit losses on an underlying security. Credit swaps give one party to a transaction the right to dispose of or
acquire an asset (or group of assets), or the right to receive a payment from the other party, upon the occurrence of specified credit events.
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Equity Index Swaps
 

A Portfolio Fund may enter into equity index swaps. Equity index swaps involve the exchange by a Portfolio Fund with another party of cash flows based upon the
performance of an index or a portion of an index of securities that usually includes dividends. A Portfolio Fund may purchase cash-settled options on equity index swaps. A
cash-settled option on a swap gives the purchaser the right, but not the obligation, in return for the premium paid, to receive an amount of cash equal to the value of the
underlying swap as of the exercise date. These options typically are purchased in privately negotiated transactions from financial institutions, including securities brokerage
firms.

 
Currency Swaps
 

A Portfolio Fund may enter into currency swaps for both hedging and non-hedging purposes. Currency swaps involve the exchange of rights to make or receive
payments in specified foreign currencies. Currency swaps usually involve the delivery of the entire principal value of one designated currency in exchange for another
designated currency. Therefore, the entire principal value of a currency swap is subject to the risk that the other party to the swap will default on its contractual delivery
obligations. The use of currency swaps is a highly specialized activity that involves special investment techniques and risks. Incorrect forecasts of market values and currency
exchange rates can materially adversely affect the Portfolio Fund’s performance. If there is a default by the other party to such a transaction, the Portfolio Fund will have
contractual remedies pursuant to the agreements related to the transaction.

 
Total Return Swaps
 

A Portfolio Fund may enter into total return swaps. In a total return swap, one party pays a rate of interest in exchange for the total rate of return on another investment.
For example, if a Portfolio Fund wished to invest in a senior loan, it could instead enter into a total return swap and receive the total return of the senior loan, less the “funding
cost,” which would be a floating interest rate payment to the counterparty.

 
Swaptions
 

A Portfolio Fund may also purchase and write (sell) options contracts on swaps, commonly referred to as “swaptions.” A swaption is an option to enter into a swap
agreement. Like other types of options, the buyer of a swaption pays a non-refundable premium for the option and obtains the right, but not the obligation, to enter into an
underlying swap on agreed-upon terms. The seller of a swaption, in exchange for the premium, becomes obligated (if the option is exercised) to enter into an underlying swap on
agreed-upon terms.

 
Certain swap agreements into which a Portfolio Fund enters may require the calculation of the obligations of the parties to the agreements on a “net basis.”

Consequently, the Portfolio Fund’s current obligations (or rights) under such swap agreements generally will be equal only to the net amount to be paid or received under the
agreement based on the relative values of the positions held by each party to the agreement (the “net amount”). The risk of loss with respect to swaps consists of the net amount
of the payments that the Portfolio Fund is contractually obligated to make. If the other party to a swap defaults, the Portfolio Fund’s risk of loss consists of the net amount of the
payments that the Portfolio Fund contractually is entitled to receive.

 
Distressed Securities
 

The Fund or a Portfolio Fund may invest in debt or equity securities of domestic and foreign issuers in weak financial condition, experiencing poor operating results,
having substantial capital needs or negative net worth, facing special competitive or product obsolescence problems, or that are involved in bankruptcy or reorganization
proceedings. Investments of this type may involve substantial financial and business risks that can result in substantial or at times even total losses. Among the risks inherent in
investments in troubled entities is the fact that it frequently may be difficult to obtain information as to the true condition of such issuers. Such investments also may be
adversely affected by state and federal laws relating to, among other things, fraudulent transfers and other voidable transfers or payments, lender liability, and a bankruptcy
court’s power to disallow, reduce, subordinate, or disenfranchise particular claims. The market prices of such securities are also subject to abrupt and erratic market movements
and above-average price volatility, and the spread between the bid and ask prices of such securities may be greater than those prevailing in other securities markets. It may take a
number of years for the market price of such securities to reflect their intrinsic value. In liquidation (both in and out of bankruptcy) and other forms of corporate reorganization,
there exists the risk that the reorganization either will be unsuccessful (due to, for example, failure to obtain requisite approvals), will be delayed (for example, until various
liabilities, actual or contingent, have been satisfied), or will result in a distribution of cash or a new security the value of which will be less than the purchase price to the
Portfolio Fund of the security in respect to which such distribution was made.
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Additional Method of Investing in a Portfolio Fund
 

The Fund will typically invest directly in a Portfolio Fund by purchasing an interest in such Portfolio Fund. There may be situations, however, where a Portfolio Fund is
not open or available for direct investment by the Fund or where the Adviser elects for other reasons to invest indirectly in a Portfolio Fund (including, without limitation,
restrictions of the Investment Company Act). On occasions where the Adviser determines that an indirect investment is the most effective or efficient means of gaining exposure
to a Portfolio Fund, the Fund may invest in a Portfolio Fund indirectly, such as by purchasing a structured note or entering into a swap or other contract paying a return tied to
the return of a Portfolio Fund. In the case of a structured note or a swap, a counterparty would agree to pay to the Fund a return based on the return of the Portfolio Fund, in
exchange for consideration paid by the Fund equivalent to the cost of purchasing an ownership interest in the Portfolio Fund. Indirect investment through a swap or similar
contract in a Portfolio Fund carries with it the credit risk associated with the counterparty. Indirect investments will generally be subject to transaction and other fees, which will
reduce the value of the Fund’s investment. There can be no assurance that the Fund’s indirect investment in a Portfolio Fund will have the same or similar results as a direct
investment in the Portfolio Fund, and the Fund’s value may decrease as a result of such indirect investment. When the Fund makes an indirect investment in a Portfolio Fund by
investing in a structured note, swap, or other contract intended to pay a return equal to the total return of such Portfolio Fund, such investment by the Fund may be subject to
additional regulations.

 
Cyber Security Risk
 

The Fund and its service providers may be prone to operational and information security risks resulting from breaches in cyber security. A breach in cyber security refers
to both intentional and unintentional events that may cause the Fund to lose proprietary information, suffer data corruption, or lose operational capacity. Breaches in cyber
security include, among other behaviors, stealing or corrupting data maintained online or digitally, denial of service attacks on websites, the unauthorized release of confidential
information or various other forms of cyber-attacks. Cyber security breaches affecting the Fund, the Adviser, financial intermediaries and other third-party service providers may
adversely impact the Fund. For instance, cyber security breaches may interfere with the processing of Shareholder transactions, impact the Fund’s ability to calculate its net asset
value, cause the release of private Shareholder information or confidential business information, impede investment activities, subject the Fund to regulatory fines or financial
losses and/or cause reputational damage. The Fund may also incur additional costs for cyber security risk management purposes. Similar types of cyber security risks are also
present for the issuers of securities in which the Fund may invest, which could result in material adverse consequences for such issuers and may cause the Fund to lose value.
The Fund and the Adviser have limited ability to prevent or mitigate cybersecurity incidents affecting third party service providers, and such third-party service providers may
have limited indemnification obligations to the Fund or the Adviser.
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Pandemic Risk
 

The continuing spread of an infectious respiratory illness caused by a novel strain of coronavirus (known as COVID-19) has caused volatility, severe market dislocations
and liquidity constraints in many markets and may adversely affect the Fund’s investments and operations. The outbreak was first detected in December 2019 and subsequently
spread globally. The transmission of COVID-19 and efforts to contain its spread have resulted in international and domestic travel restrictions and disruptions, closed
international borders, enhanced health screenings at ports of entry and elsewhere, disruption of and delays in healthcare service preparation and delivery, quarantines, event and
service cancellations or interruptions, disruptions to business operations (including staff reductions), supply chains and consumer activity, as well as general concern and
uncertainty that has negatively affected the economic environment. These disruptions have led to instability in the marketplace, including stock and credit market losses and
overall volatility. The impact of COVID-19, and other infectious illness outbreaks, epidemics or pandemics that may arise in the future, could adversely affect the economies of
many nations or the entire global economy, the financial performance of individual issuers, borrowers and sectors and the health of the markets generally in potentially
significant and unforeseen ways. In addition, the impact of infectious illnesses, such as COVID-19, in emerging market countries may be greater due to generally less
established healthcare systems. This crisis or other public health crises may exacerbate other pre-existing political, social and economic risks in certain countries or globally.

 
The Fund and Adviser have in place business continuity plans reasonably designed to ensure that they maintain normal business operations, and that the Fund, its

portfolio and assets are protected. However, in the event of a pandemic or an outbreak, such as COVID-19, there can be no assurance that the Fund, its Adviser and service
providers, or the Fund’s portfolio companies, will be able to maintain normal business operations for an extended period of time or will not lose the services of key personnel on
a temporary or long-term basis due to illness or other reasons. A pandemic or disease could also impair the information technology and other operational systems upon which the
Fund’s Adviser relies and could otherwise disrupt the ability of the Fund’s service providers to perform essential tasks.

 
To satisfy any repurchase requests during periods of extreme volatility, such as those associated with COVID-19, it is more likely the Fund will be required to dispose of

portfolio investments at unfavorable prices compared to their intrinsic value. In addition, any repurchase completed while the Fund has unrealized losses may cause the investors
whose shares were repurchased to crystalize their losses even if such unrealized losses do not ultimately convert into realized losses. You should review this prospectus and the
SAI to understand the Fund’s discretion to implement temporary defensive measures.

 
The foregoing could lead to a significant economic downturn or recession, increased market volatility, a greater number of market closures, higher default rates and

adverse effects on the values and liquidity of securities or other assets. Such impacts, which may vary across asset classes, may adversely affect the performance of the Fund’s
investments, the Fund and your investment in the Fund. In certain cases, an exchange or market may close or issue trading halts on either specific securities or even the entire
market, which may result in the Fund being, among other things, unable to buy or sell certain securities or financial instruments or to accurately price its investments.

 
Governmental authorities and regulators throughout the world, such as the U.S. Federal Reserve, have in the past responded to major economic disruptions with changes

to fiscal and monetary policy, including but not limited to, direct capital infusions, new monetary programs and dramatically lower interest rates. Certain of those policy changes
are being implemented in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Such policy changes may adversely affect the value, volatility and liquidity of dividend and interest paying
securities. The effect of recent efforts undertaken by the U.S. Federal Reserve to address the economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, such as the reduction of the federal
funds target rate, and other monetary and fiscal actions that may be taken by the U.S. federal government to stimulate the U.S. economy, are not yet fully known. Although
vaccines for COVID-19 are becoming more widely available, the duration of the COVID-19 outbreak and its full impacts are also unknown, and the pace of recovery may vary
from market to market, resulting in a high degree of uncertainty for potentially extended periods of time, especially in certain sectors in which the Fund may make investments.
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS 
 

The business operations of the Fund are managed and supervised under the direction of the Board, subject to the laws of the State of Delaware and the Fund’s amended
and restated agreement and declaration of trust (“Declaration of Trust”). The Board has overall responsibility for the management and supervision of the business affairs of the
Fund on behalf of its Shareholders, including the authority to establish policies regarding the management, conduct and operation of its business. The Board exercises the same
powers, authority and responsibilities on behalf of the Fund as are customarily exercised by the board of directors of a registered investment company organized as a
corporation. The officers of the Fund conduct and supervise the daily business operations of the Fund.

 
The trustees of the Board (each, a “Trustee”) are not required to contribute to the capital of the Fund or to hold interests therein. A majority of Trustees of the Board are

not “interested persons” (as defined in the Investment Company Act) of the Fund (collectively, the “Independent Trustees”).
 
The identity of Trustees of the Board and officers of the Fund, and their brief biographical information, including their addresses, their year of birth and descriptions of

their principal occupations during the past five years is set forth below.
 
The Trustees serve on the Board for terms of indefinite duration. A Trustee’s position in that capacity will terminate if the Trustee is removed or resigns or, among other

events, upon the Trustee’s death, incapacity, retirement or bankruptcy. A Trustee may resign upon written notice to the other Trustees of the Fund, and may be removed either by
(i) the vote of at least two-thirds of the Trustees of the Fund not subject to the removal vote or (ii) the vote of Shareholders holding not less than two-thirds of the total number of
votes eligible to be cast by all Shareholders of the Fund. In the event of any vacancy in the position of a Trustee, the remaining Trustees of the Fund may appoint an individual to
serve as a Trustee so long as immediately after the appointment at least two-thirds of the Trustees of the Fund then serving have been elected by the Shareholders of the Fund.
The Board may call a meeting of the Shareholders to fill any vacancy in the position of a Trustee of the Fund, and must do so if the Trustees who were elected by the
Shareholders cease to constitute a majority of the Trustees then serving on the Board.

 
The Board believes that each of the Trustees’ experience, qualifications, attributes and skills on an individual basis and in combination with those of the other Trustees

lead to the conclusion that each Trustee should serve in such capacity. Among the attributes common to all Trustees is the ability to review critically, evaluate, question and
discuss information provided to them, to interact effectively with the other Trustees, the Adviser, other service providers, counsel and the independent registered public
accounting firm, and to exercise effective business judgment in the performance of their duties as Trustees. A Trustee’s ability to perform his or her duties effectively may have
been attained through the Trustee’s business, consulting, and public service work; experience as a board member of non-profit entities or other organizations; education or
professional training; and/or other life experiences. In addition to these shared characteristics, set forth below is a brief discussion of the specific experience, qualifications,
attributes or skills of each Trustee. Specific details regarding each Trustee’s principal occupations during the past five years are included in the tables below. See “Board of
Trustees and Officers—Independent Trustees” and “Board of Trustees and Officers—Interested Trustees and Officers.”
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Thomas J. Allingham II
 

Mr. Allingham has been a Trustee of the Fund since the Fund’s inception. Mr. Allingham has over 30 years of legal and business leadership experience.
 

Holly Flanagan
 

Ms. Flanagan has been a Trustee of the Fund since the Fund’s inception. Ms. Flanagan has over 20 years of financial services and business development and strategy
experience.

 
Jeffrey P. Ladouceur
 

Mr. Ladouceur has been a Trustee of the Fund since the Fund’s inception. Mr. Ladouceur has more than 20 years of investment industry experience.
 

Andrew Schardt
 

Mr. Schardt has been a Trustee of the Fund since the Fund’s inception. Mr. Schardt has over 15 years of industry experience.
 

Frederick W. Shaw
 

Mr. Shaw has been a Trustee of the Fund since the Fund’s inception. Mr. Shaw has more than 20 years of compliance and industry experience.
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INDEPENDENT TRUSTEES
 

NAME, ADDRESS
AND YEAR OF BIRTH  

POSITION(S)
 WITH THE

 FUND  
LENGTH OF

TIME SERVICED*  
PRINCIPAL  OCCUPATION(S)

DURING PAST 5 YEARS  

PORTFOLIOS IN
FUND COMPLEX
OVERSEEN BY

TRUSTEE  

OTHER
DIRECTORSHIPS**
HELD BY TRUSTEE  

Thomas J. Allingham II
 
Birth Year: 1953
 
c/o UMB Fund Services,
Inc.
235 W. Galena St.
Milwaukee, WI 53212 

 Trustee  Since Inception  Retired. Partner, Skadden, Arps, Slate,
Meagher & Flom LLP (law firm) (1983
– 2016)

 1  Hamilton Lane Alliance
Holdings I, Inc. (since
2021)

 

Holly Flanagan
 
Birth Year: 1971
 
c/o UMB Fund Services,
Inc.
235 W. Galena St.
Milwaukee, WI 53212 

 Trustee  Since Inception  Managing Director of Gabriel
Investments (venture capital firm) (since
2013)

 1  Hamilton Lane Alliance
Holdings I, Inc. (since
2021); FS Credit Income
Fund (since 2017);  and FS
Multi-Alternative Income
Fund (since 2018)

 

Jeffrey P. Ladouceur
 
Birth Year: 1970
 
c/o UMB Fund Services,
Inc.
235 W. Galena St.
Milwaukee, WI 53212

 Trustee  Since Inception  Director of SEI Investments (financial
services company) (since 2010)

 1  N/A

 
 
 

 
* Each Trustee serves an indefinite term, until his or her successor is elected.
 
** Includes any company with a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), or subject to the

requirements of Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act or any company registered under the Investment Company Act.
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INTERESTED TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS
 

NAME, ADDRESS
AND YEAR OF BIRTH  

POSITION(S)
 WITH THE 

FUND  
LENGTH OF

TIME SERVICED*  
PRINCIPAL  OCCUPATION(S)

DURING PAST 5 YEARS  

PORTFOLIOS IN
FUND COMPLEX
OVERSEEN BY

TRUSTEE  

OTHER
DIRECTORSHIPS**

HELD BY TRUSTEE    

Andrew Schardt
 
Birth Year: 1978
 
c/o UMB Fund Services,
Inc.
 
235 W. Galena St.
Milwaukee, WI 53212

 Trustee and
President

 Since Inception  Managing Director and Global Head of Direct
Credit at Hamilton Lane Advisors, L.L.C.
(since 2008)

 1  N/A

 

Frederick W. Shaw
 
Birth Year: 1975
 
c/o UMB Fund Services,
Inc.
 
235 W. Galena St.
Milwaukee, WI 53212 

 Trustee and
Assistant
Secretary

 Since Inception  Chief Risk Officer (since April 2020);
Managing Director, Head of Risk,
Compliance and Strategic Integrations (2019 –
2020); Managing Director, Global Chief
Compliance and Anti-Money Laundering
Officer (2017 – 2019); and Principal, Director
of Compliance (2011 – 2017) at Hamilton
Lane Advisors, L.L.C.  

 1  N/A

 

Elina Magid
 
Birth Year: 1980
 
c/o UMB Fund Services,
Inc.
 
235 W. Galena St.
Milwaukee, WI 53212

 Treasurer  Since Inception  Head of Fund Accounting at Hamilton Lane
Advisors, L.L.C. (since 2017); Senior
Manager at Deloitte & Touche LLP (2002 –
2017)

 N/A  N/A

 

Adam B. Shane
 
Birth Year: 1983
 
c/o UMB Fund Services,
Inc.
 
235 W. Galena St.
Milwaukee, WI 53212

 Secretary  Since Inception  Attorney at Hamilton Lane Advisors, L.L.C.
(since 2014)

 N/A  N/A
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NAME, ADDRESS
AND YEAR OF BIRTH  

POSITION(S)
 WITH THE 

FUND  
LENGTH OF

TIME SERVICED*  
PRINCIPAL  OCCUPATION(S)

DURING PAST 5 YEARS  

PORTFOLIOS IN
FUND COMPLEX
OVERSEEN BY

TRUSTEE  

OTHER
DIRECTORSHIPS**
HELD BY TRUSTEE  

Allison Callahan
 
Birth Year: 1981
 
c/o UMB Fund Services,
Inc.
 
235 W. Galena St.
Milwaukee, WI 53212

 Assistant
Secretary

 Since March 2020  Funds Product Associate at Hamilton Lane
Advisors, L.L.C. (since 2020); Sales
Associate at Coventry (life insurance firm)
(January 2020 – November 2020); Manager at
Hartford Funds (registered investment
company) (2014 – 2019)

 N/A  N/A

 

Gerard Scarpati
 
Birth Year: 1955
 
c/o UMB Fund Services,
Inc.
 
235 W. Galena St.
Milwaukee, WI 53212

 Chief
Compliance
Officer  

 Since Inception  Compliance Director at Vigilant Compliance,
LLC (investment management solutions firm)
(since 2010)

 N/A  N/A

 
 
 

* Each Trustee serves an indefinite term, until his or her successor is elected.
 
** Includes any company with a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act or subject to the requirements of Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act

or any company registered under the Investment Company Act.
 
Leadership Structure and Oversight Responsibilities
 

Overall responsibility for oversight of the Fund rests with the Board. The Fund has engaged the Adviser to manage the Fund on a day-to-day basis. The Board is
responsible for overseeing the Adviser and other service providers in the operations of the Fund in accordance with the provisions of the Investment Company Act, applicable
provisions of state and other laws and the Declaration of Trust. The Board is currently composed of five members, three of whom are Independent Trustees. The Board will meet
in-person at regularly scheduled meetings four times each year. In addition, the Board may hold special in-person or telephonic meetings or informal conference calls to discuss
specific matters that may arise or require action between regular meetings. The Independent Trustees have also engaged independent legal counsel to assist them in performing
their oversight responsibility. The Independent Trustees will meet with their independent legal counsel in-person prior to and during each quarterly in-person board meeting. As
described below, the Board has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), a nominating committee (the “Nominating Committee”), and a valuation committee
(the “Valuation Committee”), and may establish ad hoc committees or working groups from time to time to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities.
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The Board has appointed Jeffrey P. Ladouceur, an Independent Trustee, to serve in the role of Chairman. The Chairman’s role is to preside at all meetings of the Board
and to act as liaison with the Adviser, other service providers, counsel and other Trustees generally between meetings. The Chairman serves as a key point person for dealings
between management and the Trustees. The Chairman may also perform such other functions as may be delegated by the Board from time to time. The Board has determined
that the Board’s leadership structure is appropriate because it allows the Board to exercise informed and independent judgment over matters under its purview and it allocates
areas of responsibility among committees of Trustees and the full Board in a manner that enhances effective oversight.

 
The Fund is subject to a number of risks, including investment, compliance, operational and valuation risks, among others. Risk oversight forms part of the Board’s

general oversight of the Fund and will be addressed as part of various Board and committee activities. Day-to-day risk management functions are subsumed within the
responsibilities of the Adviser and other service providers (depending on the nature of the risk), which carry out the Fund’s investment management and business affairs. The
Adviser and other service providers employ a variety of processes, procedures and controls to identify various events or circumstances that give rise to risks, to lessen the
probability of their occurrence and/or to mitigate the effects of such events or circumstances if they do occur. Each of the Adviser and other service providers has their own
independent interests in risk management, and their policies and methods of risk management will depend on their functions and business models. The Board recognizes that it is
not possible to identify all of the risks that may affect the Fund or to develop processes and controls to eliminate or mitigate their occurrence or effects. The Board will require
senior officers of the Fund, including the President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Compliance Officer, and the Adviser, to report to the full Board on a variety of matters at
regular and special meetings of the Board, including matters relating to risk management. The Board and the Audit Committee will also receive regular reports from the Fund’s
independent registered public accounting firm on internal control and financial reporting matters. The Board will also receive reports from certain of the Fund’s other primary
service providers on a periodic or regular basis, including the Fund’s custodian and distributor. The Board may, at any time and in its discretion, change the manner in which it
conducts risk oversight.

 
Committees of the Board of Trustees
 
Audit Committee
 

The Board has formed an Audit Committee that is responsible for overseeing the Fund’s accounting and financial reporting policies and practices, its internal controls,
and, as appropriate, the internal controls of certain service providers; overseeing the quality and objectivity of the Fund’s financial statements and the independent audit of those
financial statements; and acting as a liaison between the Fund’s independent auditors and the full Board. In performing its responsibilities, the Audit Committee will select and
recommend annually to the entire Board a firm of independent certified public accountants to audit the books and records of the Fund for the ensuing year, and will review with
the firm the scope and results of each audit. The Audit Committee currently consists of each of the Fund’s Independent Trustees. During the fiscal period ended March 31, 2021,
the Audit Committee met one time.

 
Nominating Committee
 

The Board has formed a Nominating Committee that is responsible for selecting and nominating persons to serve as Trustees of the Fund. The Nominating Committee is
responsible for both nominating candidates to be appointed by the Board to fill vacancies and for nominating candidates to be presented to Shareholders for election. In
performing its responsibilities, the Nominating Committee will consider candidates recommended by management of the Fund and by Shareholders and evaluate them both in a
similar manner, as long as the recommendation submitted by a Shareholder includes at a minimum: the name, address and telephone number of the recommending Shareholder
and information concerning the Shareholder’s interests in the Fund in sufficient detail to establish that the Shareholder held Shares on the relevant record date; and the name,
address and telephone number of the recommended nominee and information concerning the recommended nominee’s education, professional experience, and other information
that might assist the Nominating Committee in evaluating the recommended nominee’s qualifications to serve as a trustee. The Nominating Committee may solicit candidates to
serve as trustees from any source it deems appropriate. With the Board’s prior approval, the Nominating Committee may employ and compensate counsel, consultants or
advisers to assist it in discharging its responsibilities. The Nominating Committee currently consists of each of the Fund’s Independent Trustees. During the fiscal period ended
March 31, 2021, the Nominating Committee did not meet.
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Valuation Committee
 

The Board has formed a Valuation Committee that is responsible for reviewing fair valuations of securities held by the Fund in instances as required by the valuation
procedures adopted by the Board and is responsible for carrying out the provisions of its charter. The Valuation Committee currently consists of each of the Fund’s Trustees.
During the fiscal period ended March 31, 2021, the Valuation Committee met two times.

 
Trustee Ownership of Securities
 

As of December 31, 2020, none of the Trustees owned Shares of the Fund.
 
As of June 30, 2021, the Trustees and officers of the Fund as a group owned less than one percent of the outstanding shares of the Fund. 
 

Independent Trustee Ownership of Securities of the Adviser
 

For the Independent Trustees and their immediate family members, the following table provides information regarding each class of securities owned beneficially in the
Adviser or principal underwriter of the Fund, or a person (other than a registered investment company) directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under common control
with the Adviser or principal underwriter of the Fund as of February 26, 2021:

 

Name of Trustee  
Name of Owners and

Relationships to Trustee  Company Title of Class
Value of

Securities(1) Percent of Class
Thomas J. Allingham II

 None  

Hamilton Lane Alliance Holdings I, Inc. 
(sponsor is HL Alliance Holdings Sponsor

LLC, an affiliate of the Adviser) Class B $-- 0.5%
Holly Flanagan

 None  

Hamilton Lane Alliance Holdings I, Inc.
(sponsor is HL Alliance Holdings Sponsor

LLC, an affiliate of the Adviser) Class B $-- 0.5%
 
(1) Mr. Allingham and Ms. Flanagan each hold 25,000 shares of Class B common stock. Shares of Class B common stock automatically convert into shares of Class A common
stock at the time of the issuer’s initial business combination on a one-for-one basis (subject to adjustment for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and
the like). The ratio at which shares of Class B common stock shall convert into shares of Class A common stock will be further adjusted (unless the holders of a majority of the
outstanding shares of Class B common stock agree to waive such adjustment with respect to any such issuance or deemed issuance) so that the number of shares of Class A
common stock issuable upon conversion of all shares of Class B common stock will equal, in the aggregate, on an as-converted basis, 15% of the sum of (i) the total number of
all shares of common stock outstanding upon completion of the issuer’s initial public offering, plus (ii) all shares of Class A common stock and equity-linked securities issued or
deemed issued in connection with the issuer’s initial business combination (excluding any shares of Class A common stock or equity-linked securities issued, or to be issued, to
any seller in the initial business combination, and any private placement-equivalent warrants issued to the sponsor of the issuer or its affiliates upon conversion of loans made to
the issuer).

17 



 

Trustee Compensation
 

In consideration of the services rendered by the Independent Trustees, the Fund pays each Independent Trustee a retainer of $20,000 per year. Trustees that are interested
persons will not be compensated by the Fund. The Trustees do not receive any pension or retirement benefits.

 
The following table sets forth certain information regarding the compensation of the Funds’ Trustees.
 

Name of Trustee  
Aggregate Compensation

from the Fund(1)  

Total Compensation from Funds
and Fund Complex Paid to

Trustees(2)  
Thomas J. Allingham II  $20,000  $20,000  
      
Holly Flanagan  $20,000  $20,000  
      
Jeffrey P. Ladouceur  $20,000  $20,000  
 
(1) The compensation estimated to be paid by the Fund for the first full fiscal year for services to the Fund.
(2) The total estimated compensation to be paid from the Fund and Fund Complex for a full calendar year.
 

CODES OF ETHICS
 

The Fund and the Adviser have each adopted a code of ethics pursuant to Rule 17j-1 of the Investment Company Act, which is designed to prevent affiliated persons of
the Fund and the Adviser from engaging in deceptive, manipulative, or fraudulent activities in connection with securities held or to be acquired by the Fund. The codes of ethics
permit persons subject to them to invest in securities, including securities that may be held or purchased by the Fund, subject to a number of restrictions and controls.
Compliance with the codes of ethics is carefully monitored and enforced.

 
The codes of ethics are included as exhibits to the Fund’s registration statement filed with the SEC. The codes of ethics are available on the EDGAR database on the

SEC’s Internet site at http://www.sec.gov, and may be obtained after paying a duplicating fee, by electronic request at the following E-mail address: publicinfo@sec.gov.
 

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AND OTHER SERVICES 
 

The Adviser
 

Hamilton Lane Advisors, L.L.C, a limited liability company, serves as the investment adviser to the Fund. The Adviser is registered as an investment adviser with the
SEC under the Advisers Act. Subject to the general supervision of the Board, and in accordance with the investment objective, policies, and restrictions of the Fund, the Adviser
is responsible for the management and operation of the Fund and the investment of the Fund’s assets. The Adviser provides such services to the Fund pursuant to the investment
management agreement (the “Investment Management Agreement”).

 
The Investment Management Agreement became effective on the Initial Closing Date and will continue in effect for an initial two-year term. Thereafter, the Investment

Management Agreement will continue in effect from year to year provided such continuance is specifically approved at least annually by (i) the vote of a majority of the
outstanding voting securities of the Fund, or a majority of the Board, and (ii) the vote of a majority of the Independent Trustees of the Fund, cast in person at a meeting called for
the purpose of voting on such approval. See “VOTING” in the Prospectus. The Investment Management Agreement will terminate automatically if assigned (as defined in the
Investment Company Act) and is terminable at any time without penalty upon 60 days’ written notice to the Fund by either the Board or the Adviser. A discussion regarding the
basis for the Board’s approval of the Investment Management Agreement will be available in the Fund’s semi-annual report to Shareholders for the period ended September 30,
2021.
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The Investment Management Agreement provides that, in the absence of willful misfeasance, bad faith, reckless disregard or gross negligence of its obligations to the
Fund, the Adviser and any partner, director, officer or employee of the Adviser, or any of their affiliates, executors, heirs, assigns, successors or other legal representatives, will
not be liable for any error of judgment, for any mistake of law or for any act or omission by the person in connection with the performance of services to the Fund. The
Investment Management Agreement also provides for indemnification, to the fullest extent permitted by law, by the Fund, of the Adviser, or any partner, director, officer or
employee of the Adviser, and any of their affiliates, executors, heirs, assigns, successors or other legal representatives, against any liability or expense to which the person may
be liable that arises in connection with the performance of services to the Fund, so long as the liability or expense is not incurred by reason of the person’s willful misfeasance
bad faith, reckless disregard or gross negligence of its obligations to the Fund. Such indemnification includes losses sustained by the Adviser or its affiliates as an indemnitor
under any sub-servicing or other agreement entered into by the Adviser for the benefit of the Fund to the extent that such losses relate to the Fund and the indemnity giving rise
to the losses is not broader than that granted by the Fund to the Adviser or its affiliates pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement. The Fund has the right to consent
before the Adviser settles or consents to the settlement of a claim involving such indemnitor losses (but such consent right will not affect the Adviser’s entitlement to
indemnification).

 
The Fund pays the Adviser the Investment Management Fee in consideration of the advisory and other services provided by the Adviser to the Fund. Pursuant to the

Investment Management Agreement, the Fund pays the Adviser a quarterly Investment Management Fee equal to 1.50% on an annualized basis of the Fund’s average daily
Managed Assets during such period. “Managed Assets” means the total assets of the Fund (including any assets attributable to money borrowed for investment purposes) minus
the sum of the Fund’s accrued liabilities (other than money borrowed for investment purposes). The Investment Management Fee is paid to the Adviser out of the Fund’s assets
and decreases the net profits or increases the net losses of the Fund. The Investment Management Fee will be computed as of the last day of each month and will be due and
payable in arrears within fifteen business days after the end of the quarter.

 
The Investment Management Fee is paid to the Adviser before giving effect to any repurchase of Shares in the Fund effective as of that date and will decrease the net

profits or increase the net losses of the Fund that are credited to its Shareholders. Because the Investment Management Fee is based on the Fund’s Managed Assets, any leverage
utilized by the Fund will result in an increase in such fee (as a percentage of net assets attributable to Shares).

  
A portion of the Investment Management Fee may be paid to brokers or dealers that assist in the placement of Shares, including brokers or dealers that may be affiliated

with the Adviser.
 
During the fiscal period from January 4, 2021 (Commencement of Operations) to March 31, 2021, the Investment Management Fee paid by the Fund to the Adviser was

$541,641.
 
In addition, the Adviser (or, to the extent permitted by applicable law, an affiliate of the Adviser) will be entitled to receive an additional amount that is accrued monthly

and payable upon the Fund’s exit from an investment in each Direct Investment, Secondary Investment, Listed PE Investment and Opportunistic Investment (the “Incentive
Fee”).
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The Incentive Fee shall be calculated in respect of each Direct Investment, Secondary Investment, Listed PE Investment and Opportunistic Investment (each, an "
Applicable Investment") (i.e., on a deal-by-deal basis), whether or not such investments are made through any intermediate vehicle.

 
The Incentive Fee in respect of each Applicable Investment shall be calculated as follows:
 

(i) First, 100% of all proceeds (including both cash and non-cash proceeds) from such Applicable Investment received by the Fund ("Relevant Proceeds") shall be
retained by the Fund until it has received Relevant Proceeds equal to:
 

(a) the acquisition cost of such Applicable Investment; plus
 
(b) an amount equal to the Preferred Return Rate, compounded annually, on the amounts originally invested by the Fund in such Applicable Investment,
calculated from the time (or times) the Fund contributed capital in respect of such Applicable Investment until the Fund received Relevant Proceeds in respect of
such Applicable Investment equal to this paragraph (i), taking into account the timing of the relevant cash flows;
 

(ii) Second, the Adviser will be entitled to amounts equal to 100% of further Relevant Proceeds received by the Fund with respect to such Applicable Investment
until such time as the Adviser has received 12.50% multiplied by the sum of (x) the preferred return described in paragraph (i)(b) above and (y) the amounts
distributed to the Adviser under this paragraph; and
 
(iii) Third, an additional amount equal to 12.50% multiplied by further Relevant Proceeds with respect to such Applicable Investment will be distributed to the
Adviser and the remainder of further Relevant Proceeds with respect to such Applicable Investment shall be retained by the Fund.
 

For purposes of the foregoing, (A) the “Preferred Return Rate” equals (x) 8% per annum in respect of any Direct Equity Investment, Secondary Investment,
Opportunistic Investment or Listed PE Investment and (y) 6% per annum in respect of any Direct Credit Investment, (B) all amounts "retained" by the Fund shall be available
for immediate use by the Fund for payment of expenses, reinvestment or any other valid Fund purpose, and need not be held by the Fund as cash or in any other form for any
length of time, but rather the Fund is free to use such amounts in any manner, (C) a single Secondary Investment may be comprised of a portfolio of underlying assets acquired
in a single transaction or a series of related transactions as determined by the Adviser in its reasonable discretion, and assets acquired as part of a single secondary transaction
may be treated as one or more separate Secondary Investments, and (D) the contributions to and distributions from an applicable investment will be based on the actual currency
in which such amounts are made and will not reflect any hedging.

 
No Incentive Fee will be payable in respect of any Investments of the Fund in Primary Fund Investments, currency hedging transactions or cash equivalents.
 
During the fiscal period from January 4, 2021 (Commencement of Operations) to March 31, 2021, the Incentive Fee incurred by the Fund was $995,544.
 
The Adviser has entered into an expense limitation agreement (the “Expense Limitation Agreement”) with the Fund, whereby the Adviser has agreed to waive fees that

it would otherwise be paid, and/or to assume expenses of the Fund (a “Waiver”), if required to ensure the Total Annual Expenses (excluding taxes, interest, brokerage
commissions, certain transaction-related expenses, extraordinary expenses, the Incentive Fee, the Investment Management Fee and any acquired fund fees and expenses) do not
exceed 1.45%, 0.75% and 1.00% of the average daily net assets of Class R Shares, Class I Shares and Class D Shares, respectively (the “Expense Limit”). For a period not to
exceed three years from the date on which a Waiver is made, the Adviser may recoup amounts waived or assumed, provided it is able to effect such recoupment without causing
the Fund’s expense ratio (after recoupment) to exceed the lesser of (a) the expense limit in effect at the time of the waiver, and (b) the expense limit in effect at the time of the
recoupment. The Expense Limitation Agreement will have a term ending one-year from the date the Fund commences operations, and will automatically renew thereafter for
consecutive twelve-month terms, provided that such continuance is specifically approved at least annually by a majority of the Trustees. The Expense Limitation Agreement
may be terminated by the Fund’s Board of Trustees upon thirty days’ written notice to the Adviser.
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During the fiscal period from January 4, 2021 (Commencement of Operations) to March 31, 2021, the amount of the fees waived or expenses reimbursed by the Adviser
was $325,096. During the fiscal period from January 4, 2021 (Commencement of Operations) to March 31, 2021, the amount of the fees waived on assets held in cash or cash
equivalents less the total amount of capital committed by the Fund and not yet drawn for investment was $0.

 
Investment Committees 
 

The personnel of the Adviser who currently have primary responsibility for management of the Fund (the “Portfolio Managers”) are the members of the Evergreen
Portfolio Committee. The Evergreen Portfolio Committee is composed of:

 
Brian Gildea | Head of Investments
 
Brian is Head of Investments at Hamilton Lane where he is responsible for oversight and management of all of Hamilton Lane’s investment activities. In addition, Brian serves
on the firm’s Investment Committee and Operating Committee. Brian has more than 20 years of private equity investment experience. Prior to joining Hamilton Lane in 2009,
Brian was a General Partner at Bear Stearns Merchant Banking, and prior to that, at Freeman Spogli & Co. Brian began his career as a Financial Analyst in the Mergers &
Acquisitions Group at Salomon Brothers Inc. Brian Gildea received a B.S. in Business Administration from Georgetown University.
 
Michael Ryan | Managing Director
 
Mike serves as Managing Director and Head of Evergreen Portfolios, focused on the development and management of Hamilton Lane’s open-ended private markets solutions. In
his prior role, Mike headed the Research group where his work informed portfolio construction, risk assessment and product structure across Hamilton Lane’s portfolios. Prior to
joining Hamilton Lane in 2008, Mike was a Principal at Capital Z Investment Partners, where managed private equity investments in alternative asset managers. Previously,
Mike worked in the Technology Investment Banking and Real Estate Investment Banking groups at Merrill Lynch. Mike received a B.A. in Economics and Computer Science
from Williams College.
 
Richard Hope | Managing Director & Head of EMEA
 
Richard is a Managing Director and Head of EMEA on Hamilton Lane’s Global Investment Team and member of the Investment Committee. Richard heads the firm’s London
office and focuses on both direct equity and credit and secondary transactions. Richard represents Hamilton Lane on several fund advisory boards and is a regular conference
speaker.
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Prior to joining Hamilton Lane in 2011, Richard worked as a Director with Alliance Trust Equity Partners, where he helped establish a private equity fund investment business
together with making a number of direct investments.
 
Previously, Richard worked in the UK at Noble Group, where he was responsible for making and managing venture and growth capital investments. Richard received a B.Com.
from the University of Edinburgh.
 
Andrew Schardt | Managing Director
 
Drew is a Managing Director at Hamilton Lane and Global Head of Direct Credit. In this capacity, Drew leads our Direct Credit Team and investment activities, and serves as a
member of the Investment Committee In this capacity, Drew is active in the sourcing, due diligence and execution of credit-related investments. Prior to joining Hamilton Lane
in 2008, Drew focused on principal investing and advisory activities while at TCG Advisors, an Aerospace & Defense-focused merchant bank. Previously, Drew held positions
with Holberg, Inc., a diversified private holding company, and he began his career in investment banking at Banc of America Securities. Drew received an M.B.A from Duke
University’s Fuqua School of Business and a bachelor’s degree in Economics from Cornell University.
 
Thomas Kerr | Managing Director
 
Tom is a Managing Director and the Global Head of Secondaries at Hamilton Lane. He is responsible for direction and oversight of the firm’s Secondary Investment platform
and is a member of the Investment Committee. In this capacity, Tom is active in secondary deal sourcing and execution. In addition, Tom is a member of the firm’s Portfolio
Strategic Group, which is responsible for directing the firm’s strategic investment approach. Tom began his career at Hamilton Lane in 1999 and most recently was a member of
the Fund Investment Team, where he was responsible for due diligence of primary fund investment opportunities. Prior to this, Tom was responsible for the coordination and
management of the firm’s client relationship activities. Prior to joining Hamilton Lane, Tom spent two years at BISYS Plan Services, where he was responsible for the
investment activities of institutional defined benefit plans. Tom received an M.B.A. from Saint Joseph’s University and a B.S. in Finance from Rider University.
 
Jacqueline Rantanen | Managing Director
 
Jackie is a Managing Director and the head of Hamilton Lane’s Product Management Group, where she has responsibility for the firm’s Specialized funds including secondaries,
direct equity, direct credit, and multi-strategy. Jackie is also an Investment Committee member. Jackie began her career with Hamilton Lane on the Fund Investment Team, and
she has held roles in Relationship Management, PR and Marketing. Prior to joining Hamilton Lane in 1997, Jackie was a Corporate Finance Analyst for Comcast Corporation.
Previously, she was a member of the Chemical Division’s Financial Analysis Department for Sunoco, Inc. Jackie received an M.B.A. from Villanova University and a B.S. from
Drexel University.
 
Mario Giannini | Chief Executive Officer
 
Mario is the Chief Executive Officer of Hamilton Lane and sits on the firm's Investment Committees. He is responsible for the firm's strategic direction and oversees the
development of the firm's management structure and process. Mario also plays a significant role in providing client services to the firm's numerous clients and in marketing the
firm's products and services. In addition, Mario serves on several advisory boards on behalf of Hamilton Lane and its clients, including Thomas H. Lee, TPG Partners and
Providence Equity Partners.
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Mario received a J.D. from Boston College, a Master of Laws degree from the University of Virginia, and a B.A. from California State University.
 
Other Accounts Managed by the Portfolio Managers(1)

 

  

Number of Other Accounts Managed and Total
Value of Assets by Account Type for Which There

is No Performance-Based Fee:  
Number of Other Accounts and Total Value of     Assets

for Which Advisory Fee is Performance-Based:  

 

 

Registered
investment
companies  

Other pooled
investment

vehicles  
Other

accounts  

Registered
investment
companies  

Other pooled
investment

vehicles  
Other

accounts  

Mario
Giannini

 

Zero
Accounts

 38 pooled investment vehicles,
investing $9,991,612,910

 42 accounts, investing
$9,890,858,604

 Zero
accounts

 33 pooled investment vehicles,
investing $9,330,000,691

 4 accounts,
investing

$965,735,440  

Brian
Gildea

 

Zero
accounts

 38 pooled investment vehicles,
investing  $9,991,612,910

 42 accounts, investing
$9,890,858,604    

 Zero
accounts

 61 pooled investment vehicles,
investing $16,169,139,325

 8 accounts,
investing

$1,806,470,880  

Michael
Ryan  

Zero
accounts

 Zero accounts  Zero accounts  Zero
accounts

 1 pooled investment vehicle.
investing $600,000,000

 Zero accounts
 

Richard
Hope

 

Zero
accounts

 Zero accounts  Zero accounts  Zero
accounts

 27 pooled investment vehicles,
investing $7,525,210,792

 4 accounts,
investing

$965,735,440  

Andrew
Schardt  

Zero
accounts

 Zero accounts  Zero accounts  Zero
accounts

 9 pooled investment vehicles,
investing $1,804,789,899

 Zero accounts
 

Thomas
Kerr

 

Zero
accounts

 Zero accounts  Zero accounts  Zero
accounts

 33 pooled investment vehicles,
investing  $9,330,000,691

 4 accounts,
investing

$965,735,440  

Jacqueline
Rantanen  

Zero
accounts

 38 pooled investment vehicles,
investing $9,991,612,910

 42 accounts, investing
$9,890,858,604

 Zero
accounts

 1 pooled investment vehicles,
investing $600,000,000

 Zero accounts
 

 
(1) As of March 31, 2021. Investing amounts are determined based upon accounts of currently investing capital overseen by the investment committees that the above

referenced portfolio managers are a member of.
 
The figures noted above represent the current commitment amounts of discretionary accounts overseen by the various Hamilton Lane Investment Committees of which the
above noted individuals are members. This does not include the value of accounts that are no longer making investments/not in their investment period.
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Conflicts of Interest
 

The Portfolio Managers may manage separate accounts or other pooled investment vehicles that may have materially higher or different fee arrangements than the Fund
and may also be subject to performance-based fees. The side-by-side management of these separate accounts and pooled investment vehicles may raise potential conflicts of
interest relating to cross-trading and the allocation of investment opportunities. The Adviser has a fiduciary responsibility to manage all client accounts in a fair and equitable
manner. The Adviser seeks to provide best execution of all securities transactions and to allocate investments to client accounts in a fair and reasonable manner. To this end, the
Adviser has developed policies and procedures designed to mitigate and manage the potential conflicts of interest that may arise from side-by-side management.

 
Compensation of the Portfolio Managers
 

A competitive base salary and a performance-based bonus structure are in place for all team members. Portfolio Managers, analysts, and other associates are paid a
competitive base salary and discretionary bonus based on their fiduciary investment responsibilities, performance of the individual, and performance of the firm. The
discretionary bonus structure gives the Adviser the ability to remain competitive under current market conditions affecting compensation across the industry. The discretionary
bonus may be payable in both cash and equity. In addition, certain employees of the Adviser also receive carried interest from certain of the Adviser’s clients.

 
Investment Committee Ownership of Securities in the Fund
 

Name of Investment Committee Member  

Dollar Range of Securities Beneficially Owned by
Investment Committee Team Member 

(As of March 31, 2021 )   
Mario Giannini  Over $1,000,000   
Brian Gildea  $500,001-$1,000,000   
Michael Ryan  $500,001-$1,000,000   
Richard Hope  None   
Andrew Schardt  $100,001-$500,000   
Thomas Kerr  None   
Jacqueline Rantanen  None   
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PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS AND BROKERAGE ALLOCATION
 

The Adviser generally selects brokers and dealers to effect transactions on behalf of the Fund in substantially the following manner.
 
In selecting brokers and dealers to effect transactions on behalf of the Fund, the Adviser seeks to obtain the best price and execution for the transactions, taking into

account factors such as price, size of order, difficulty of execution and operational facilities of a brokerage firm and the firm’s risk in positioning a block of securities. As
described below, the Adviser may place orders with brokers that provide research services. Such transactions shall comply with the safe harbor (the “Safe Harbor”) under
Section 28(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”), with respect to the receipt of such services.

 
Consistent with the principle of seeking best price and execution, the Adviser may place brokerage orders with brokers that provide the Fund and the Adviser with

supplemental research, market and statistical information, including advice as to the value of securities, the advisability of investing in, purchasing or selling securities, and the
availability of securities or purchasers or sellers of securities, and furnishing analyses and reports concerning issuers, industries, securities, economic factors and trends, portfolio
strategy and the performance of accounts.

 
In most instances, the Fund will purchase interests in a Portfolio Fund directly from the Portfolio Fund, and such purchases by the Fund may be, but are generally not,

subject to transaction expenses. Nevertheless, the Fund anticipates that some of its portfolio transactions (including investments in Portfolio Funds by the Fund) may be subject
to expenses. Given the private markets focus of a majority of the Portfolio Funds, significant brokerage commissions are not anticipated to be paid by such funds. During the
fiscal period from January 4, 2021 (Commencement of Operations) to March 31, 2021, the Fund paid no brokerage commissions.

 
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM; LEGAL COUNSEL

 
Cohen & Company, Ltd., located at 151 North Franklin Street, Suite 575, Chicago, IL 60606, has been selected as independent registered public accounting firm for the

Fund and in such capacity will audit the Fund’s annual financial statements.
 
Faegre Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP, One Logan Square, Suite 2000, Philadelphia, PA 19103-6996, serves as counsel to the Fund.
 

CUSTODIAN
 

UMB Bank, n.a., which has its principal office at 1010 Grand Blvd., Kansas City, MO 64106 (the “Custodian”) serves as the primary custodian of the assets of the Fund,
and may maintain custody of such assets with U.S. and non-U.S. sub-custodians (which may be banks, trust companies, securities depositories and clearing agencies) in
accordance with the requirements of Section 17(f) of the Investment Company Act. Assets of the Fund are not held by the Adviser or commingled with the assets of other
accounts other than to the extent that securities are held in the name of the Custodian or U.S. or non-U.S. sub-custodians in a securities depository, clearing agency or omnibus
customer account of such custodian.
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CALCULATION OF NET ASSET VALUE
 

The Fund calculates the net asset value as of the close of business on the last business day of each calendar month, each date that a Share is offered or repurchased, as of
the date of any distribution and at such other times as the Board shall determine (each, a “Determination Date”). In determining its net asset value, the Fund values its
investments as of the relevant Determination Date. The net asset value of the Fund equals, unless otherwise noted, the value of the total assets of the Fund, less all of its
liabilities, including accrued fees and expenses, each determined as of the relevant Determination Date. The net asset values of each class of shares will be calculated separately
based on the fees and expenses applicable to such class. It is expected that the net asset values of Class R Shares, Class I Shares and Class D Shares will vary over time as a
result of the differing fees and expenses applicable to each class.

 
PROXY VOTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

 
The Board has delegated responsibility for decisions regarding proxy voting for securities held by the Fund to the Adviser. The Adviser will vote such proxies in

accordance with its proxy policies and procedures. Copies of the Adviser’s proxy policies and procedures are included as Appendix B to this SAI. The Board will periodically
review the Fund’s proxy voting record.

 
The Fund will be required to file Form N-PX, with its complete proxy voting record for the twelve months ended June 30, no later than August 31 of each year. The

Fund’s Form N-PX filing will be available: (i) without charge, upon request, by calling the Fund at (888) 882-8212 or (ii) by visiting the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.
 

CONTROL PERSONS AND PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS
 

As of June 30, 2021, the following persons were the only persons who were record owners (or to the knowledge of the Fund, beneficial owners) of 5% or more of the
Shares.

 
Name and Address  Percentage of Ownership
MASSACHUSETTS MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE CO
1295 STATE ST
SPRINGFIELD, MA 01111

 59.33% of Shares

HAMILTON LANE ADVISORS, LLC
110 WASHINGTON ST, STE. 1300
CONSHOHOCKEN, PA 18428

 17.87% of Shares

MARIO LUCIO GIANNINI
c/o 110 WASHINGTON ST, STE. 1300 
CONSHOHOCKEN, PA 18428

 5.61% of Shares

 
Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the applicable rules of the SEC.
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Appendix A to this SAI provides financial information regarding the Fund. The Fund’s financial statements as of March 31, 2021 have been audited by Cohen &
Company, Ltd. No financial statement information is presented for Class D Shares because Class D Shares did not commence operations as of March 31, 2021.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
 

A registration statement on Form N-2, including amendments thereto, relating to the Shares offered hereby, has been filed by the Fund with the SEC. The Prospectus and
this Statement of Additional Information do not contain all of the information set forth in the registration statement, including any exhibits and schedules thereto. For further
information with respect to the Fund and the Shares offered hereby, reference is made to the registration statement. A copy of the registration statement may be reviewed and
copied on the EDGAR database on the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.gov. Prospective investors can also request copies of these materials, upon payment of a duplicating fee,
by electronic request at the SEC’s e-mail address (publicinfo@sec.gov).
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Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund
 

 

Consolidated Schedule of Investments
As of March 31, 2021
 

 

Investments — 72.75%† Interest  Maturity 
Date   Investment 

Type   Acquisition 
Date   Cost   Fair Value  

Direct Investments — 43.46%^                     
Direct Credit — 12.41%                     
North America — 12.41%                     
Consumer Discretionary — 3.37%                     
LHS Borrower, LLC.1,2 (Principal

amount $5,523,182)
Cash 6.75% + LIBOR

(1% Floor)3   9/30/2025    Senior Debt    9/30/2020  $ 5,408,085  $ 5,415,852# 
                      

Diversified Financials — 2.97%                     
AMLRS Holdings, Inc.1,2 (Principal

amount $4,872,380)
Cash 6.25% + LIBOR

(1% Floor)3   9/21/2026    Senior Debt    9/21/2020   4,786,931   4,783,664# 
                      

Electrical Equipment — 0.37%                     
Inventus Power1 (Principal amount

$600,000)
Cash 7.25% + LIBOR

(1% Floor)3   9/29/2024    Senior Debt    3/31/2021   588,009   588,028# 
                      

Health Care — 0.41%                      
Teal Acquisition Co., Inc.1,2 (Principal

amount $648,780)
Cash 6.25% + LIBOR

(1% Floor)3   9/22/2026    Senior Debt    9/21/2020   630,570   643,049# 
                      

Insurance — 3.68%                      
Alliant Services, Inc.1

9.75%   12/8/2028    
Preferred

Equity    11/6/2020   5,918,079   5,917,060# 
                      

Software and Services — 1.62%                     
PF Midco, Inc.1 Cash 9.75% + LIBOR

(1% Floor)3   Perpetual    
Preferred

Equity    11/17/2020   1,291,583   1,328,910# 
Packers Software Intermediate Holdings,

Inc.1,2
Cash 7.75% + LIBOR

(1% Floor)3   11/12/2028    
Preferred

Equity    11/12/2020   1,277,600   1,276,832# 
Total Software and services   2,605,742 

Total Direct Credit   19,953,395 
 
  Investment Type              
Direct Equity — 31.05%                 
North America — 17.74%                 
Consumer Discretionary — 8.1%                 
CL DAL Opportunities Feeder, L.P.*1,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    9/16/2020    4,783,887   7,031,665 
RC V RW Investor-B, LLC*1,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    10/12/2020    6,000,966   6,000,966# 
Total Consumer Discretionary   13,032,631 

                 
Diversified Financials — .88%                 
AMLRS Equity Investors, L.P.*1,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    9/21/2020    1,413,356   1,411,765# 
                 

Health Care — 4.63%                 
NEA BH SPV II, L.P.*1,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    9/2/2020    5,011,770   5,226,504# 
Teal Parent Holdings, L.P.*1,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    9/21/2020    32,520   35,524# 
 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund
 

 

Consolidated Schedule of Investments
As of March 31, 2021 (Continued)
 

 

Investments — 72.75%†  Investment Type   Acquisition 
Date   Cost   Fair Value  

Direct Investments (Continued)                 
Direct Equity (Continued)                 
North America (Continued)                 
Health Care (Continued)                 
TVG-Hero Holdings II, L.P.*1,2,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    10/8/2020   $ 2,175,664  $ 2,175,664# 
Total Health Care   7,437,692 

                 
Industrial Services — 3.73%                 
KAWP Holdings, L.P.*1,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    12/14/2020    6,000,000   6,000,000# 
                 

Software and Services — 0.41%                 
Project Brewer*1,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    11/12/2020    653,354   652,142# 
Total North America   28,534,230 

                 
United Kingdom — 13.3%                 
Health Care — 3.67%                 
Panacea Co-Investment, L.P.*1,4,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    12/16/2020    6,167,427   5,896,221# 
                 

Insurance — 3.9%                 
Chance Co-Investment, L.P.*1,4,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    12/16/2020    6,566,015   6,278,716# 
                 

Software and Services — 5.73%                 
Bowmark Investment Partnership - J, L.P.*1,4,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    10/15/2020    2,271,965   2,385,370# 
TPG Vardos CI, L.P.*1,2,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    9/7/2020    6,009,308   6,835,114# 
Total Software and Services   9,220,484 

Total United Kingdom   21,395,421 
Total Direct Equity   49,929,652 

                 
Secondary Investments — 27.21%^                 
Secondary Equity — 1.02%                 
North America — 1.02%                 
Growth Equity — 1.02%                 
Madison Bay - HL, L.P.*1,2,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    9/4/2020    1,018,497   1,633,345# 
Total Secondary Equity   1,633,345 

                 
Secondary Funds — 26.2%                 
North America — 26.2%                 
Corporate Finance/Buyout — 14.69%                 
Audax Private Equity Fund IV CF, L.P.*1,2,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    12/14/2020    4,198,362   4,710,287 
CLP Select Opportunities, L.P.*1,2,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    12/9/2020    6,658,647   6,901,483 
JZHL Secondary Fund L.P.*1,2,5,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    12/1/2020    5,016,125   7,375,597 
KPS Special Situations Fund IV, L.P.*1,2,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    9/29/2020    2,560,170   3,155,073 
Wind Point Partners VIII-B, L.P.*1,2,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    3/31/2021    1,413,496   1,484,956 
Total Corporate Finance/Buyout   23,627,395 

                 
Growth Equity — 11.5%                 
Everstone Capital Partners III, L.P.*1,2,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    9/29/2020    3,499,566   5,920,614 
L Catterton Growth IV L.P.*1,2,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    3/30/2021    —   2,227,761 
NewView Capital Special Opportunities Fund I, L.P.*1,2,7

  
Limited Partnership

Interest    10/12/2020    7,815,257   10,350,113 
Total Growth Equity   18,498,488 

Total Secondary Funds   42,125,883 
 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund
 

 

Consolidated Schedule of Investments
As of March 31, 2021 (Continued)
 

 

Investments — 72.75%†           Number of 
Contracts   Cost   Fair Value  

Purchased Options — 0.04%                     
Put Options                      

INR Indian Rupee Option   2,000,000  $ 83,000  $ 63,110 
Exercise Price: $79.93, Notional Amount: $159,860,000, Expiration Date: 10/19/2022*

                      

  Interest rate   
Principal 

Value   Shares          
Short Term Investments — 2.04%                     

Federated Treasury Obligations Fund – Institutional Class    0.01%6    N/A   1,683,128   1,683,128   1,683,128 
UMB Money Market Fiduciary    0.01%6    1,600,000   N/A   1,600,000   1,600,000 

Total Short Term Investments   3,283,128 
                      
Total Investments (Cost $102,533,338)   116,988,513 
Other assets in excess of liabilities — 27.25%   43,825,965 
Total Net Assets — 100%  $ 160,814,478 
 
† Direct Investments are private investments directly into the equity or debt of selected operating companies, often together with the company. Secondary Investments are

portfolios of assets purchased on the secondary market.
 

^ Investments do not issue shares.
 

# The Fair Value is estimated by management using significant unobservable inputs and as such may not necessarily reflect the current or expected future performance of such
Direct Investment or Secondary Investment or the Fair Value of the Fund’s interest in such Direct Investment or Secondary Investment. Furthermore, the Fair Value has not
been calculated, reviewed, verified or in any way approved by such Direct Investment or Secondary Investment or its general partner, manager or sponsor (including any of
its affiliates). Please see notes to financial statements for further details regarding the valuation policy of the Fund.

 
* Investment is non-income producing.

 
1 Restricted security.

 
2 Investment has been committed to but has not been fully funded by the Fund.

 
3 The interest rate on these loans is subject to the greater of a LIBOR floor or 1 month LIBOR plus a base rate. The 1 month LIBOR as of March 31, 2021 was 0.11113%.

 
4 Foreign security denominated in U.S. Dollars.

 
5 This security is custodied with Cayman entity.

 
6 The rate is the annualized seven-day yield at period end.

 
7 Investment does not allow redemptions or withdrawals except at discretion of its general partner, manager or advisor.

 
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund
 

 

Consolidated Schedule of Investments
As of March 31, 2021 (Continued)
 

 
Summary of Investment Funds by Strategy (as a percentage of total investments)
Direct Investments     

Direct Credit   12.41 
Direct Equity   31.05 

Total Direct Investments   43.46 
Secondary Investments     

Secondary Equity   1.02 
Secondary Funds   26.20 

Total Secondary Investments   27.22 
Purchased Options Contracts   0.04 
Short Term Investments   2.04 
Total Investments   72.76 

Other assets in excess of liabilities   27.25 
Total Net Assets   100.00 
 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund
 

 

Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities
March 31, 2021
 

 
Assets     
Investments, at fair value (cost $102,450,338)  $ 116,925,403 
Purchased options, at fair value (cost $83,000)   63,110 
Cash   47,656,424 
Receivable from Adviser   490,763 
Direct credit interest receivable   118,803 
Prepaid organizational costs   125,664 
Prepaid expenses and other assets   8,400 
Interest receivable   27,462 
Total Assets   165,416,029 
     
Liabilities     
Incentive fees payable   2,135,667 
Advanced partner contributions   1,600,000 
Investment management fees payable   541,641 
Organizational fees payable   103,690 
Accounting and administration fees payable   40,986 
Trustees’ fees payable   30,000 
Custody fees payable   7,253 
Transfer agent fees payable   4,613 
Other accrued expenses   137,701 
Total Liabilities   4,601,551 
     
Commitments and contingencies (see Note 11)     
     
Net Assets  $ 160,814,478 
     
Composition of Net Assets:     
Paid-in capital  $ 146,269,665 
Total distributable earnings   14,544,813 
Net Assets  $ 160,814,478 
     
Net Assets Attributable to:     

Class I Shares  $ 160,710,693 
Class R Shares   103,785 

  $ 160,814,478 
     
Shares of Beneficial Interest Outstanding (unlimited number of shares authorized):     

Class I Shares   15,484,525 
Class R Shares   10,000 

   15,494,525 
     
Net Asset Value per Share:     

Class I Shares  $ 10.38 
Class R Shares  $ 10.38 

 
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund
 

 

Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the Period January 4, 2021* through March 31, 2021
 

 
Investment Income     
Interest income  $ 479,268 
Total Income   479,268 
     
Expenses     
Incentive fees   995,544 
Investment management fees   541,641 
Organizational fees   242,870 
Professional fees   122,225 
Accounting and administration fees   74,033 
Offering costs   63,618 
Trustees’ fees and expenses   30,000 
CCO fees   15,060 
Transfer Agency fees   10,131 
Custodian fees   6,203 
Other operating expenses   29,829 
Total Expenses   2,131,154 

Investment management fees waived   (325,096)
Net Expenses   1,806,058 

Net Investment Loss   (1,326,790)
     
Realized and Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investments and Purchased Options     
Net realized gain on investments   1,438,968 
Net change in unrealized appreciation on investments   5,706,974 
Net change in unrealized depreciation on purchased options   (2,299)
Net Realized and Unrealized Gain on Investments and Purchased Options   7,143,643 
     
Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operations  $ 5,816,853 
 
* The Fund commenced operations on January 4, 2021 following reorganization of Hamilton Lane Evergreen Private Fund LP which was effective as of close of business on

December 31, 2020, see Note 1 in the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund
 

 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
 

 

 

 

For the Period 
January 4, 

2021* 
Through 

March 31, 2021

 

Change in Net Assets Resulting from Operations     
Net investment loss  $ (1,326,790)
Net realized gain on investments   1,438,968 
Net change in unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) on investments   5,704,675 
Net Change in Net Assets Resulting from Operations   5,816,853 
     
Change in Net Assets Resulting from Capital Transactions     

Class I     
Capital contributions1   154,897,625 
Total Class I Transactions   154,897,625 

     
Net Change in Net Assets Resulting from Capital Transactions   154,897,625 
     
Total Net Increase in Net Assets   160,714,478 
     
Net Assets     
Beginning of period   100,000 
End of period  $ 160,814,478 
     
Shareholder Activity     

Class I Shares     
Subscriptions   15,484,525 
Net Change in Class I Shares Outstanding   15,484,525 

 
1 Contributions include $137,227,624, which consists of assets of $138,823,251, net of assumed liabilities and performance allocation of $1,595,627, which were received in

connection with the reorganization of the Hamilton Lane Evergreen Private Fund LP. See Note 1 in the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
 

* The Fund commenced operations on January 4, 2021 following reorganization of Hamilton Lane Evergreen Private Fund LP which was effective as of close of business on
December 31, 2020, see Note 1 in the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

 
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund
 

 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Period January 4, 2021* through March 31, 2021
 

 
Cash Flows From Operating Activities     
Net increase in net assets from operations  $ 5,816,853 
Adjustments to reconcile net increase in net assets resulting from operations to net cash used in operating activities:     

Purchases of investments, including value of investments received via in-kind contribution   (3,915,876)
Purchases of short-term investments, net   (3,283,128)
Proceeds from investment distributions   4,284,913 
Net realized gain on investments   (1,438,968)
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments   (5,706,974)
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on purchased options   2,299 

(Increase)/Decrease in Assets:     
Increase in prepaid organizational costs   (125,664)
Increase in prepaid expenses and other assets   (8,400)
Increase in interest receivable   (27,462)
Increase in receivable from Adviser   (490,763)
Increase in direct credit interest receivable   (118,803)
Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities:     
Increase in incentive fees payable   2,135,667 
Increase in investment management fee payable   541,641 
Increase in organizational fee payable   103,690 
Increase in accounting and administration fees payable   40,986 
Increase in transfer agent fees payable   30,000 
Increase in custody fees payable   7,253 
Increase in trustees’ fees   4,613 
Increase in other accrued expenses   137,701 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities   (2,010,422)
     
Cash Flows from Financing Activities     

Proceeds from capital contributions, net of change in capital contributions received in advance   49,566,846 
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities   49,566,846 
     
Net change in Cash   47,556,424 
Cash - Beginning of Period   100,000 
Cash - End of Period  $ 47,656,424 
     
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activities     

Value of investments received via in-kind contribution  $ 106,930,779 
 
* The Fund commenced operations on January 4, 2021 following reorganization of Hamilton Lane Evergreen Private Fund LP which was effective as of close of business on

December 31, 2020, see Note 1 in the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund
 

 

Consolidated Financial Highlights
Class I Shares
 

 
Per share operating performance.
For a capital share outstanding throughout the period.

 

 

 

For the Period 
January 4, 

2021*
through 

March 31, 2021

 

Per Share Operating Performance:     
Net Asset Value per share, beginning of period  $ 10.00 
Activity from investment operations:     

Net investment loss1   (0.09)
Net realized and unrealized gain/(loss) on investments and purchased options   0.47 

Total from investment operations   0.38 
     
Net Asset Value per share, end of period  $ 10.38 
     
Net Assets, end of year (in thousands)  $ 160,711 
     
Ratios to average shareholders’ equity:     
Net investment loss2,3   (3.24)%
     
Gross expenses4   6.20%
Expense Recoupment/(Reimbursement)   (0.92)%
Net expenses4   5.28%
     
Total Return5   3.78%6,7

     
Portfolio turnover rate   0.00%6

 
1 Per share data is computed using the average shares method.

 
2 Net investment loss has been annualized, except for Organizational Fees and Syndication Costs which are one time expenses.

 
3 Net investment loss ratio is calculated excluding Incentive Fees. If Incentive Fees were included the ratio would have been lowered by 0.68% for the period ended March 31,

2021. Recognition of net investment income by the Fund is affected by the timing of the declaration of dividends by the underlying funds in which the Partnership invests.
Ratios do not include net investment income of the funds in which the Partnership invests.

 
4 Expense ratios have been annualized, except for Organizational Fees and Syndication Costs which are one time expenses, and Incentive Fees which are not annualized. If

Incentive Fees had been excluded, the expense ratios would have decreased by 0.68%. Expenses do not include expenses from underlying funds in which the Fund is
invested.

 
5 Total return based on per unit net asset value reflects the change in net asset value based on the effects of the performance of the Fund during the period and assumes

distributions, if any, were reinvested. Total returns shown exclude the effect of applicable sales charges.
 

6 Not annualized.
 

7 Includes adjustments in accordance with GAAP and accordingly the returns and per unit net asset value for financial reporting may differ from the per unit net asset value
and returns for shareholder transactions.

 
* The Fund commenced operations on January 4, 2021 following reorganization of Hamilton Lane Evergreen Private Fund LP which was effective as of close of business on

December 31, 2020, see Note 1 in the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
 

11
 



 

Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund
 

 

Consolidated Financial Highlights
Class R Shares
 

 
Per share operating performance.
For a capital share outstanding throughout the period.

 

 

 

For the Period 
January 4, 

2021*
through 

March 31, 2021

 

Per Share Operating Performance:     
Net Asset Value per share, beginning of period  $ 10.00 
Activity from investment operations:     

Net investment loss1   (0.09)
Net realized and unrealized gain/(loss) on investments and purchased options   0.47 

Total from investment operations   0.38 
     
Net Asset Value per share, end of period  $ 10.38 
     
Net Assets, end of year (in thousands)  $ 104 
     
Ratios to average shareholders’ equity:     
Net investment loss2,3   (3.24)%
     
Gross expenses4   6.20%
Expense Recoupment/(Reimbursement)   (0.92)%
Net expenses4   5.28%
     
Total Return5   3.78%6,7

     
Portfolio turnover rate   0.00%6

 
1 Per share data is computed using the average shares method.

 
2 Net investment loss has been annualized, except for Organizational Fees and Syndication Costs which are one time expenses.

 
3 Net investment loss ratio is calculated excluding Incentive Fees. If Incentive Fees were included the ratio would have been lowered by 0.68% for the period ended March 31,

2021. Recognition of net investment income by the Fund is affected by the timing of the declaration of dividends by the underlying funds in which the Partnership invests.
Ratios do not include net investment income of the funds in which the Partnership invests.

 
4 Expense ratios have been annualized, except for Organizational Fees and Syndication Costs which are one time expenses, and Incentive Fees which are not annualized. If

Incentive Fees had been excluded, the expense ratios would have decreased by 0.68%. Expenses do not include expenses from underlying funds in which the Fund is
invested.

 
5 Total return based on per unit net asset value reflects the change in net asset value based on the effects of the performance of the Fund during the period and assumes

distributions, if any, were reinvested. Total returns shown exclude the effect of applicable sales charges.
 

6 Not annualized.
 

7 Includes adjustments in accordance with GAAP and accordingly the returns and per unit net asset value for financial reporting may differ from the per unit net asset value
and returns for shareholder transactions.

 
* The Fund commenced operations on January 4, 2021 following reorganization of Hamilton Lane Evergreen Private Fund LP which was effective as of close of business on

December 31, 2020, see Note 1 in the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund
 

 

Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
 

 
Note 1 – Organization

 
Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund (the “Fund”) a Delaware statutory trust that is registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “Investment
Company Act”), as a non-diversified, closed-end management investment company. Hamilton Lane Advisors, L.L.C. (the “Adviser”), a Pennsylvania limited liability company,
serves as the investment advisor of the Fund. The Adviser is a registered investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended. The Fund was organized as
a Delaware trust on February 7, 2020 and commenced operations on January 4, 2021. Simultaneous with the commencement of the Fund’s operations (“Commencement of
Operations”), the Hamilton Lane Evergreen Private Fund LP (the “Predecessor Fund”), reorganized with and transferred substantially all its portfolio securities into the Fund.
The Predecessor Fund maintained an investment objective, strategies and investment policies, guidelines and restrictions that were, in all material respects, equivalent to those of
the Fund. The Fund and the Predecessor Fund share the same investment adviser and portfolio managers. The proposed Plan of Reorganization was approved by the Fund’s
Board of Trustees (the “Board”) on December 15, 2020. The tax-free reorganization was accomplished at close of business on December 31, 2020. The reorganization was
accomplished by the following tax-free exchange in which each shareholder of the Predecessor Fund received the same aggregate share net asset value in the corresponding
classes as noted below:

 
  Shares Issued   Net Assets  
Class I  $ 13,722,762  $ 137,227,624 
 
The net unrealized appreciation of investments transferred was $8,750,500 as of the date of the acquisition, and the cost basis of the investments received was carried forward to
align ongoing reporting of the Fund’s realized and unrealized gains and losses with amounts distributable to shareholders for tax purposes.

 
The Fund will (or may) include investments in general or limited partnerships, funds, corporations, trusts or other investment vehicles (collectively, “Investment Funds”). The
Fund’s investments will also include direct investments in the equity or debt of a company (collectively, “Direct Investments”). The Fund’s primary investment objective is to
generate capital appreciation over the medium- and long-term through investments in private assets globally.

 
The Fund offers three separate classes of shares of beneficial interest (“Shares”) designated as Class R Shares, Class I Shares and Class D Shares. Each class of Shares is subject
to different fees and expenses. The Fund may offer additional classes of Shares in the future. The Fund has received an exemptive order from the SEC with respect to the Fund’s
multi-class structure. As of March 31, 2021, Class D Shares were not offered for sale.

 
The minimum initial investment in Class R Shares by an investor in the Fund is $50,000, the minimum initial investment in Class I Shares by an investor is $1,000,000 and the
minimum initial investment in Class D Shares by an investor in the Fund is $50,000. However, the Fund, in its sole discretion, may accept investments below these minimums.

 
The Fund is not a liquid investment. No Shareholder will have the right to require the Fund to redeem its Shares. The Fund from time to time may offer to repurchase Shares
pursuant to written tenders by the Shareholders.

 
The Adviser anticipates recommending to the Board that, under normal market circumstances, the Fund conduct repurchase offers of no more than 5% of the Fund’s net assets
generally quarterly beginning on June 30, 2021 and thereafter quarterly on or about each December 31, March 31, June 30 and September 30.

 
(a) Consolidation of Subsidiaries

 
The Fund may make investments through wholly-owned subsidiaries (“Subsidiaries”). Such Subsidiaries will not be registered under the Investment Company Act. However,
the Fund will wholly own and control any Subsidiaries. The Board has oversight responsibility for the investment activities of the Fund, including its investment in any
Subsidiary, and the Fund’s role as sole member or shareholder of any Subsidiary. To the extent applicable to the investment activities of a Subsidiary, the Subsidiary will follow
the same compliance policies and procedures as the Fund. The Fund would “look through” any such Subsidiary to determine compliance with its investment policies. Each
investment adviser to any such foreign subsidiary will comply with Section 15 of the Investment Company Act with respect to advisory contract approval, including that (i)
material amendments to any such subsidiary’s advisory contract must be approved by the Fund’s shareholders or the Fund’s Board of Trustees in the manner and to the extent
that the Fund’s advisory agreement must be approved by the Fund’s shareholders or the Fund’s Board of Trustees; and (ii) the Fund’s shareholders will have the ability to vote to
terminate the subsidiary’s advisory agreements to the extent that they can vote to terminate the Fund’s advisory agreement.
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Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund
 

 

Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2021 (Continued)
 

 
Note 1 – Organization (continued)

 
As of March 31, 2021, there are two active Subsidiaries, the PAF JZ Blocker, formed under the laws of the Cayman Islands on September 17, 2020, and HL PAF Holdings, LLC,
incorporated in Delaware on March 10, 2021. The Consolidated Schedule of Investments, Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities, Consolidated Statement of
Operations, Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Financial Highlights of the Fund include the accounts
of the Subsidiaries. All inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidation for the Fund. As of March 31, 2021, total assets of the Fund were
$165,416,029, of which $7,375,597, or approximately 4.5%, was held in the PAF JZ Blocker.

 
Note 2 – Accounting Policies

 
The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies consistently followed by the Fund in the preparation of its financial statements. The financial statements have
been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).

 
(a) Basis of Accounting

 
The Fund is an investment company and follows the accounting and reporting guidance in Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC”) Topic 946, Financial Services – Investment Companies (“ASC 946”). U.S. GAAP for an investment company requires investments to be recorded at their estimated fair
value.

 
(b) Use of Estimates

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

 
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

 
Cash, represents cash deposits held at financial institutions. Cash is held at major financial institutions and are subject to credit risk to the extent those balances exceed
applicable FDIC or SIPC limitations.

 
(d) Options purchased

 
When an option is purchased, an amount equal to the premium paid is recorded as an investment and is subsequently adjusted to the current fair value of the option purchased.
Premiums paid for the purchase of options which expire unexercised are treated by the Fund on the expiration date as realized losses. If a purchased put option is exercised, the
premium is subtracted from the proceeds of the sale of the underlying security or foreign currency in determining whether the Fund has realized a gain or loss. If a purchased call
option is exercised, the premium increases the cost basis of the security or foreign currency purchased by the Fund. Options purchased on an exchange are standardized while
options purchased over-the-counter (“OTC”) have counterparty risk associated with them.

 
(e) Concentration of Market, Credit and Industry Risks

 
The Fund’s portfolio investments are generally illiquid, non-publicly traded securities and are realized as distributions from portfolio investments are made and when portfolio
investments are disposed of. These portfolio investments are subject to various risk factors including market, credit and industry risk. Market risk represents the potential loss in
value of financial instruments caused by movements in market variables, such as interest rates. Other risks affecting these portfolio investments include, but are not limited to,
increasing competition, rapid changes in technology and changes in economic conditions. Additionally, certain portfolio investments are denominated in foreign currencies that
may be negatively affected by movements in the rate of exchange between the U.S. dollar and such foreign currencies. These risk factors could have a material effect on the
ultimate realizable value of the Fund’s portfolio investments.

 
(f) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

 
The fair value of the Fund’s assets which qualify as financial instruments approximates the carrying amounts presented in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund
values its investments in investment funds at fair value in accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement (“ASC 820”).
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Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund
 

 

Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2021 (Continued)
 

 
Note 2 – Accounting Policies (continued)

 
The Fund’s direct investments are also in private equity credit and equity-related investments that are generally not publicly traded, and thus, market quotations are not available
to be used for valuation purposes. Therefore, the Adviser is required to value these direct investments at estimated fair values, using present value and other subjective valuation
techniques. These may include references to market multiples, valuations for comparable companies, public market or private transactions, subsequent developments concerning
the companies to which the securities relate, results of operations, financial condition, cash flows, and projections of such companies provided to the Adviser and such other
factors as the Adviser may deem relevant. Depending on the circumstances, company multiples will not always be comparable due to the size of the related companies or
associated transactions being used as comparable data in valuation.

 
The Adviser utilizes a valuation committee, consisting of senior members of the management team, to review and approve the valuation results related to the investments. The
Adviser also utilizes independent valuation firms to provide third-party valuation consulting services for direct credit and direct equity investments.

 
For portfolio investments that are publicly traded and for which market quotations are available, valuations are generally based on the closing sales prices, or an average of the
closing bid and ask prices, as of the valuation date.

 
(g) Investment Transactions and Related Income

 
The Fund’s primary sources of income are investment income and gains recognized upon distributions from portfolio investments and unrealized appreciation in the fair value of
its portfolio investments. The Fund generally recognizes investment income and realized gains based on the characterization of distributions provided by the
administrator/investment manager of the portfolio investment at the time of distributions.

 
Realized gains and losses from the sale of portfolio investments represent the difference between the original cost of the portfolio investments, as adjusted for return of capital
distributions (net cost), and the net proceeds received at the time of the sale, disposition or distribution date. The Fund records realized gains and losses on portfolio investments
when securities are sold, distributed to the partners or written-off as worthless. The Fund recognizes the difference between the net cost and the estimated fair value of portfolio
investments owned as the net change in unrealized appreciation / (depreciation) on investments in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

 
Interest income, including amortization of premium or discount using the effective interest method and interest on paid-in-kind instruments, is recorded on an accrual basis.
Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date or the date the Fund becomes aware of the dividend. Other income from portfolio investments, which represents operating
income from investment partnerships or other flow through entities received by the Fund, is recorded on the date received.

 
(h) Foreign Currency

 
The values of portfolio investments denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at the date of valuation. Capital contributions to the portfolio investments
and distributions received from the portfolio investments are translated into U.S. dollar amounts on the respective dates of each such transaction. The Fund does not isolate the
effects of changes in foreign currency rates on the valuation of these portfolio investments. Such fluctuations in exchange rates are included with and form part of the net
realized and unrealized gain (loss) from investments.

 
(i) Income Taxes

 
The Fund elects to be treated as, and qualifies as, a regulated investment company (“RIC”) under Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”)
by distributing substantially all of its investment company taxable income and any net realized capital gains (after reduction for capital loss carryforwards) sufficient to relieve it
from all, or substantially all, federal income taxes. Accordingly, no provision for federal income taxes was required for the Fund.

 
In accounting for income taxes, the Fund follows the guidance in FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. FASB ASC 740 prescribes the minimum
recognition threshold a tax position must meet in connection with accounting for uncertainties in income tax positions taken or expected to be taken by an entity before being
measured and recognized in the financial statements. There were no material uncertain tax positions requiring recognition in the Fund’s financial statements as of March 31,
2021.

 
The Fund utilizes a tax-year end of September 30 and the Fund’s income and federal excise tax returns and all financial records supporting returns will be subject to examination
by the federal and Delaware revenue authorities.
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Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund
 

 

Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2021 (Continued)
 

 
Note 2 – Accounting Policies (continued)

 
Management has analyzed the Fund’s tax positions for the open tax year and has concluded that as of March 31, 2021, no provision for income taxes is required in the financial
statements. Therefore, no additional tax expense, including any interest and penalties, was recorded in the current year and no adjustments were made to prior periods. To the
extent the Fund recognizes interest and penalties, they are included in interest expense and other expenses, respectively, in the Statement of Operations.

 
Note 3 – Investment Transactions

 
For the period January 4, 2021 through March 31, 2021, purchases and sales of investments, excluding short-term investments, were $101,965,874 and $0, respectively. The
$101,965,874 of purchases is inclusive of investments in the amount of $99,870,618 contributed in-kind to the Fund in connection with the reorganization of the Predecessor
Fund.

 
Note 4 – Portfolio Valuation

 
ASC 820 defines fair value as the value that the Fund would receive to sell an investment or pay to transfer a liability in a timely transaction with an independent buyer in the
principal market, or in the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. ASC 820 establishes a three-level hierarchy for fair value
measurements based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability. Inputs may be observable or unobservable and refer broadly to the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Observable inputs reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on
market data obtained from sources independent of the Fund. Unobservable inputs reflect the Fund’s own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use
in valuing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. Each investment is assigned a level based upon the observation of the
inputs which are significant to the overall valuation. The three-tier hierarchy of inputs is summarized below:

 
Level I: Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date. The types of investments which would generally be included in Level
I include listed equities.

 
Level II: Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date, and fair value is determined
through the use of models or other valuation methodologies. The types of investments which would generally be included in Level II include corporate bonds and loans, and
less liquid and restricted equity securities. This category also includes interests in special purpose vehicles whose fair value is predominantly attributable to investments in
Level I type securities.

 
Level III: Pricing inputs are unobservable for the investment and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the investment. The inputs into the
determination of fair value require significant management judgment or estimation. Those unobservable inputs, that are not corroborated by market data, generally reflect
the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in determining the fair value of the investment. The types of investments which
would generally be included in Level III include equity and/or debt securities issued by private entities and investments in private equity partnerships.

 
The Fund has established valuation processes and procedures to ensure that the valuation techniques are fair and consistent, and valuation inputs are supportable. The Fund has
designated a Valuation Committee (the “Committee”) comprised of employees of the Adviser to oversee the entire valuation process of the Fund’s investments. The Committee
is responsible for developing the Fund’s written valuation processes and procedures, conducting periodic reviews of the valuation policies, and evaluating the overall fairness
and consistent application of the valuation policies. The Committee meets on a monthly basis. The Fund’s investments in Investment Funds are carried at fair value which
generally represents the Fund’s pro-rata interest in the net assets of each Investment Fund as reported by the administrators and/or investment managers of the underlying
Investment Funds. All valuations utilize financial information supplied by each Investment Fund and are net of management and incentive fees or allocations payable to the
Investment Funds’ managers or pursuant to the Investment Funds’ agreements. The Fund’s valuation procedures require the Adviser to consider all relevant information
available at the time the Fund values its portfolio. The Committee has assessed factors including, but not limited to, the individual Investment Funds’ compliance with fair value
measurements, price transparency and valuation procedures in place. The Committee will consider such information and consider whether it is appropriate, in light of all relevant
circumstances, to value such a position at its NAV as reported or whether to adjust such value. The underlying investments of each Investment Fund are accounted for at fair
value as described in each Investment Fund’s financial statements.
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Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund
 

 

Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2021 (Continued)
 

 
Note 4 – Portfolio Valuation (continued)

 
The fair value relating to certain underlying investments of these Investment Funds, for which there is no ready market, has been estimated by the respective Investment Fund’s
management and is based upon available information in the absence of readily ascertainable fair values and does not necessarily represent amounts that might ultimately be
realized. Due to the inherent uncertainty of valuation, those estimated fair values may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready market for the
investments existed. These differences could be material.

 
The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not an indication of the risk associated with investing in those securities. The following is a summary of the inputs
used, as of March 31, 2021, in valuing the Fund’s assets and liabilities carried at fair value:

 
Assets  Level I   Level II   Level III   Total  
Investments                 

Direct Credit  $ —  $ —  $ 19,953,395  $ 19,953,395 
Direct Equity   —   —   42,897,987   42,897,987 
Secondary Equity   —   —   1,633,345   1,633,345 
Purchased Options   —   63,110   —   63,110 
Short Term Investments   3,283,128   —   —   3,283,128 

Total Investments  $ 3,283,128  $ 63,110  $ 64,484,727  $ 67,830,965 
 
In accordance with Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2015-07, Disclosures for Investments in Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or Its Equivalent)
certain Direct Equity and Secondary Fund investments fair valued using net asset value (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient are not included in the fair value hierarchy. As
such, investments in securities with a fair value of $49,157,548 are excluded from the fair value hierarchy as of March 31, 2021.

 
The following is a reconciliation of assets in which significant unobservable inputs (Level III) were used in determining value:

 
  Direct Credit   Direct Equity   Secondary Equity  
Balance as of January 4, 2021  $ —  $ —  $ — 

Transfers into Level III   —   —   — 
Transfers out of Level III   —   —   — 
Total gains or losses for the period             

Included in earnings (or changes in net assets)   30,538   595,640   614,848 
Purchases   19,922,857*   42,302,347*   1,018,497*

Balance as of March 31, 2021  $ 19,953,395  $ 42,897,987  $ 1,633,345 
             
Change in unrealized gains or losses for the period included in earnings (or changes in partners’

capital) for Level III assets held at the end of the reporting period  $ 30,538  $ 595,640  $ 614,848 
 
* Purchases include in-kind contributions of $18,106,323, $42,592,113 and $1,598,640 for Direct Credit, Direct Equity and Secondary Equity, respectively.
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Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund
 

 

Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2021 (Continued)
 

 
Note 4 – Portfolio Valuation (continued)

 
The following table presents additional quantitative information about valuation methodologies and inputs used for investments that are measured at fair value and categorized
within Level III as of March 31, 2021:

 

Asset Class

 Fair Value 
at March 31, 

2021

  
Valuation 

Technique(s)

  Unobservable 
Input(1)

  
Range of 

Input

  Weighted 
Average of 

Input

  

Impact to 
Valuation from 
an Increase in 

Input(2)

 

Direct Credit  $ 19,310,346   Recent Transaction   Recent transaction price   N/A   N/A   N/A  
Direct Credit

  643,049   

Income Approach -
Discounted Cash Flow

Method   Discount Rate   
7.147% -

7.803%   7.475%  Decrease  
Direct Equity   30,800,845   Recent Transaction   Recent transaction price   N/A   N/A   N/A  
Direct Equity

  35,524   

Market Approach -
Guideline Public

Company Method   LTM EBITDA Multiple   12.25x   N/A   Increase  
Direct Equity

  5,226,504   

Market Approach -
Guideline Public

Company Method   LTM Revenue Multiple   3.25x   N/A   Increase  
Direct Equity

  6,835,114   

Market Approach -
Guideline Public

Company Method   LTM EBITDA Multiple   20.5x   N/A   Increase  
Secondary Equity

  1,633,345   

Market Approach -
Guideline Public

Company Method   LTM Revenue Multiple   6.00x   N/A   Increase  
 

      

Market Approach -
Guideline Public

Company Method   NFY Revenue Multiple   5.75x   N/A   Increase  
       Option Pricing Model   Volatility   50%  N/A   Increase  
 
(1) The Advisor considers relevant indications of value that are reasonably and timely available to it in determining the fair value to be assigned to a particular security, such as

the type, cost and recent purchases or sales of the security; contractual or legal restrictions on resale of the security; relevant financial or business developments of the issuer;
actively traded related securities; conversion or exchange rights on the security; related corporate actions; significant events occurring after the close of trading in the
security; and changes in overall market conditions. Fair value pricing involves subjective judgments and it is possible that the fair value determined for a security may be
materially different than the value that could be realized upon the sale of that security.

 
(2) This column represents the directional change in the fair value of the Level III investments that would result from an increase/decrease to the corresponding unobservable

input.
 

(3) Inputs shown do not represent a range but rather two distinct inputs, thus since there is no range a weighted average calculation would not apply.
 

Note 5 – Federal Income Taxes
 

At March 31, 2021, gross unrealized appreciation and depreciation of investments owned by the Fund, based on cost for federal income tax purposes were as follows:
 

Cost of investments  $ 102,555,878 
Gross unrealized appreciation   15,019,524 
Gross unrealized depreciation   (586,889)
Net unrealized appreciation on investments  $ 14,432,635 
 
The difference between cost amounts for financial statement and federal income tax purposes is due primarily to timing differences in recognizing certain gains and losses in
security transactions.
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Note 5 – Federal Income Taxes (continued)

 
GAAP requires that certain components of net assets to be reclassified between financial and tax reporting. These reclassifications have no effect on net assets or net asset value
per share. For the year ended March 31, 2021, permanent differences in book and tax accounting have been reclassified to paid-in capital and total distributable earnings as
follows:
 

Increase (Decrease)

Paid-in 
Capital  

Total 
Distributable 

Earnings (Loss)  
$ 22,540  $(22,540)

 
Note 6 – Investment Management Fees and Allocations

 
The Fund pays the Adviser an investment management fee (the “Investment Management Fee”) in consideration of the Advisory and other services provided by the Adviser to
the Fund. The Fund pays the Adviser a quarterly Investment Management Fee equal to 1.50% on an annualized basis of the Fund’s average daily Managed Assets during such
period. “Managed Assets” means the total assets of the Fund (including any assets attributable to money borrowed for investment purposes) minus the sum of the Fund’s accrued
liabilities (other than money borrowed for investment purposes). The Investment Management Fee is paid to the Adviser before giving effect to any repurchase of Shares in the
Fund effective as of that date and will decrease the net profits or increase the net losses of the Fund that are credited to its Shareholders.

 
In addition, the Adviser (or, to the extent permitted by applicable law, an affiliate of the Adviser) will be entitled to receive an Incentive Fee, that is accrued monthly and payable
upon the Fund’s exit from an investment in each Direct Investment, Secondary Investment, Listed PE Investment and Opportunistic Investment (each, an “Applicable
Investment”).

 
The Incentive Fee shall be calculated in respect of each Applicable Investment (i.e., on a deal-by-deal basis), whether or not such investments are made through any intermediate
vehicle.

 
The Incentive Fee in respect of each Applicable Investment shall be calculated as follows:

 
(i) First, 100% of all proceeds (including both cash and non-cash proceeds) from such Applicable Investment received by the Fund (“Relevant Proceeds”) shall be retained by
the Fund until it has received Relevant Proceeds equal to:

 
 (a) the acquisition cost of such Applicable Investment; plus

 
 (b) an amount equal to the Preferred Return Rate, compounded annually, on the amounts originally invested by the Fund in such Applicable Investment, calculated from the

time (or times) the Fund contributed capital in respect of such Applicable Investment until the Fund received Relevant Proceeds in respect of such Applicable
Investment equal to this paragraph (i), taking into account the timing of the relevant cash flows;

 
(ii) Second, the Adviser will be entitled to amounts equal to 100% of further Relevant Proceeds received by the Fund with respect to such Applicable Investment until such time
as the Adviser has received 12.50% multiplied by the sum of (x) the preferred return described in paragraph (i)(b) above and (y) the amounts distributed to the Adviser under
this paragraph; and

 
(iii) Third, an additional amount equal to 12.50% multiplied by further Relevant Proceeds with respect to such Applicable Investment will be distributed to the Adviser and the
remainder of further Relevant Proceeds with respect to such Applicable Investment shall be retained by the Fund.

 
For purposes of the foregoing, (A) the “ Preferred Return Rate” equals (x) 8% per annum in respect of any Direct Equity Investment, Secondary Investment, Opportunistic
Investment or Listed PE Investment and (y) 6% per annum in respect of any Direct Credit Investment, (B) all amounts “retained” by the Fund shall be available for immediate
use by the Fund for payment of expenses, reinvestment or any other valid Fund purpose, and need not be held by the Fund as cash or in any other form for any length of time,
but rather the Fund is free to use such amounts in any manner, (C) a single Secondary Investment may be composed of a portfolio of underlying assets acquired in a single
transaction or a series of related transactions as determined by the Adviser in its reasonable discretion, and assets acquired as part of a single secondary transaction may be
treated as one or more separate Secondary Investments, and (D) the contributions to and distributions from an applicable investment will be based on the actual currency in
which such amounts are made and will not reflect any hedging.
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Note 6 – Investment Management Fees and Allocations (continued)

 
No Incentive Fee will be payable in respect of any Investments of the Fund in primary fund investments, currency hedging transactions or cash equivalents.

 
The Adviser has entered into an expense limitation agreement (the “Expense Limitation Agreement”) with the Fund, whereby the Adviser has agreed to waive fees that it would
otherwise be paid, and/or to assume expenses of the Fund (a “Waiver”), if required to ensure the Total Annual Expenses (excluding taxes, interest, brokerage commissions,
certain transaction-related expenses, extraordinary expenses, acquired fund fees and expenses, the Investment Management Fee and the Incentive Fee) do not exceed 1.45%,
0.75% and 1.00% of the average daily net assets of Class R Shares, Class I Shares and Class D Shares, respectively (the “Expense Limit”). For a period not to exceed three years
from the date on which a Waiver is made, the Adviser may recoup amounts waived or assumed, provided it is able to effect such recoupment without causing the Fund’s expense
ratio (after recoupment) to exceed the lesser of (a) the expense limit in effect at the time of the waiver, and (b) the expense limit in effect at the time of the recoupment. The
Expense Limitation Agreement also provides that, after the commencement of operations until the first anniversary of the commencement of operations, the Adviser agrees to
waive fees payable to it by the Fund on assets held in cash or cash equivalents less the total amount of capital committed by the Fund and not yet drawn for investment. The
Expense Limitation Agreement will have a term ending one-year from the date the Fund commences operations, and will automatically renew thereafter for consecutive twelve-
month terms, provided that such continuance is specifically approved at least annually by a majority of the Trustees. The Expense Limitation Agreement may be terminated by
the Fund’s Board of Trustees upon thirty days’ written notice to the Adviser.

 
For the period January 4, 2021 through March 31, 2021, the Adviser waived fees and expenses totaling $325,096. At March 31, 2021 the amount of these potentially recoverable
expenses is $490,763 expiring on March 31, 2024.

 
Note 7 – Certain Risk Factors and Conflicts of Interest

 
Investors considering an investment in the Fund should be aware of potential risks. Prospective investors must rely upon their own examination of, and ability to understand, the
nature of this investment, including the risks involved, in making a decision to invest in the Fund. There can be no assurance that the Fund will be able to achieve its investment
objective or that investors will receive a return of their capital. In addition, there will be occasions when the Adviser or its affiliates may encounter potential conflicts of interest.
By acquiring an interest in the Fund, each shareholder will be deemed to have acknowledged the existence of any such actual and potential conflicts of interest and to have
waived any claim with respect to any liability arising from the existence of any such conflict of interest.

 
The Fund will invest in highly illiquid, long-term investments. The Fund does not expect to be able to transfer its investments in, or to withdraw from, the Investment Funds or
Direct Investments. In addition, the investments of the Investment Funds and Direct Investments generally will be investments for which no liquid market exists or will be
subject to legal or other restrictions on transfer, and the Fund may be required to hold such investments until maturity or otherwise be restricted from disposing of such
investments. Investment Funds or sponsors of Direct Investments in which the Fund invests may face reduced opportunities to exit and realize value from their investments in
the event of a general market downturn or a specific market dislocation. As a consequence, an Underlying Fund or the Fund may not be able to sell its investments when it
desires to do so or to realize what it perceives to be their fair value in the event of a sale. Furthermore, under certain circumstances, distributions may be made by the Fund to
Limited Partners in-kind and could consist of securities for which there is no readily available market.

 
In some cases, the Fund may dispose of its investments in one or more Investment Funds and Direct Investments in secondary transactions with third parties. Approval of the
sponsors of Investment Funds and Direct Investments will generally be required to effect any such secondary sale and there can be no assurances that such approval will be
given. Furthermore, due to the illiquid market for secondary transactions, there can be no assurance that any secondary sale will be successfully completed in the time the
Adviser determines most appropriate for the Fund or that the price paid by a third party purchaser will reflect Hamilton Lane’s or the underlying fund sponsor’s valuation for
such investment. Depending on the circumstances of the Underlying Fund, the price received by the Fund may represent a substantial discount relative to the valuation at which
such investment is held or the amount of capital contributed to such investment. The Fund may be required to agree to retain certain liabilities relating to the Underlying Fund or
Direct Investment even after it is sold.
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Note 7 – Certain Risk Factors and Conflicts of Interest (continued)

 
Under the 1940 Act, the Fund is required to carry its portfolio investments at market value or, if there is no readily available market value, at fair value. There is not a public
market for the securities of the privately held companies in which the Fund may invest. Many of the Fund’s investments are not exchange-traded, but are, instead, traded on a
privately negotiated over-the-counter (“OTC) secondary market for institutional investors. The Board is responsible for the valuation of the Fund’s portfolio investments, and
has delegated day-to-day responsibility for implementing the portfolio valuation process set forth in the Fund’s valuation policy to the Adviser. Valuations of Fund investments
are disclosed quarterly in reports publicly filed with the SEC.

 
A high proportion of the Fund’s investments relative to its total investments are expected to be valued at fair value. Certain factors that may be considered in determining the fair
value of the Fund’s investments include dealer quotes for securities traded on the OTC secondary market for institutional investors, the nature and realizable value of any
collateral, the portfolio company’s earnings and its ability to make payments on its indebtedness, the markets in which the portfolio company does business, comparison to
selected publicly-traded companies, discounted cash flow and other relevant factors. The factors and methodologies used for the valuation of such securities are not necessarily
an indication of the risks associated with investing in those securities nor can it be assured that the Fund can realize the fair value assigned to a security if it were to sell the
security. Such valuations, and particularly valuations of private securities and private companies, are inherently uncertain, and they often reflect only periodic information
received by the Adviser about such companies’ financial condition and/or business operations, which may be on a lagged basis and can be based on estimates. Determinations of
fair value may differ materially from the values that would have been used if an exchange-traded market for these securities existed. Investments in private companies are
typically governed by privately negotiated credit agreements and covenants, and reporting requirements contained in the agreements may result in a delay in reporting their
financial position to lenders, which in turn may result in the Fund’s investments being valued on the basis of this reported information. Due to these various factors, the Fund’s
fair value determinations could cause the Fund’s NAV on a valuation day to materially differ from what it would have been had such information been fully incorporated. As a
result, to the extent that such subsequently adjusted valuations adversely affect the Fund’s net asset value, the outstanding Shares may be adversely affected by prior repurchases
to the benefit of Shareholders who had their Shares repurchased at a net asset value higher than the adjusted amount.

 
Conversely, any increases in the net asset value resulting from such subsequently adjusted valuations may be entirely for the benefit of the outstanding Shares and to the
detriment of Shareholders who previously had their Shares repurchased at a net asset value lower than the adjusted amount. The same principles apply to the purchase of Shares.
New Shareholders may be affected in a similar way.

 
The Adviser provides investment advice to a variety of clients, including through other accounts and investment funds, and expects to have additional clients in the future. These
other clients may have goals that are similar to or overlap with those of the Fund. As a result, the Adviser and its affiliates – including each of their respective directors, officers,
partners and employees – may be subject to various conflicts of interest in their relationships and dealings with the Fund. By acquiring an interest in the Fund, each investor will
be deemed to have acknowledged the existence of such actual and potential conflicts of interest and, to the extent permitted by applicable law, to have waived any claims with
respect to the existence of any conflicts of interest.

 
Note 8 – Shareholder Servicing Plan

 
The Fund has adopted a Distribution and Service Plan with respect to Class R and Class D Shares in compliance with Rule 12b-1 under the Investment Company Act. The
Distribution and Service Plan allows the Fund to pay distribution and servicing fees for the sale and servicing of its Class R and Class D Shares. Under the Distribution and
Service Plan, the Fund will be permitted to pay as compensation up to a maximum of 0.70% per year on Class R Shares and up to a maximum of 0.25% per year on Class D
Shares on an annualized basis of the aggregate net assets of the Fund attributable to each class (the “Distribution and Servicing Fee”) to the Fund’s Distributor and/or other
qualified recipients. Because these fees are paid out of the Fund’s assets on an ongoing basis, over time these fees will increase the cost of an investment and may cost more than
paying other types of sales charges. Class I Shares are not subject to the Distribution and Servicing Fee. As of March 31, 2021, no distribution and service fees have yet been
charged.
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Note 9 – Risks Related to Pandemics and Other Diseases

 
Events such as health pandemics or outbreaks of disease may lead to increased short-term market volatility and may have adverse long-term effects on the U.S. and world
economies and markets generally. For example, beginning in late 2019, China experienced an outbreak of a new and highly contagious form of coronavirus disease, “COVID-
19”. In the ensuing months, COVID-19 spread to numerous countries and was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization, prompting precautionary government-
imposed closures and restrictions of certain travel and businesses in many countries. Given the novelty of COVID-19, it is extremely difficult to quantify the extent of its adverse
impact on the global economy, in particular if it continues to spread globally. Health pandemics or outbreaks could result in a general economic decline in a given region, or
globally, particularly if the outbreak persists for an extended period of time or spreads globally. This could have an adverse impact on Investment Funds and/or Direct
Investments, or the Fund’s ability to source new investments or to realize its investments. Pandemics and similar events could also have an acute effect on individual issuers or
related groups of issuers and could adversely affect securities markets, interest rates, auctions, secondary trading, ratings, credit risk, inflation, deflation and other factors relating
to Investment Funds and/or Direct Investments or the Adviser’s operations or the operations of a sponsor of an Underlying Fund or Direct Investment. Additionally, the risks
related to health pandemics or outbreaks of disease are heightened due to uncertainty as to whether such an event would qualify as a force majeure event. If a force majeure
event is determined to have occurred, a counterparty to the Fund, an Underlying Fund and/or Direct Investments may be relieved of its obligations under certain contracts to
which it is a party, or, if it has not, the Fund, Underlying Fund or Direct Investments, as the case may be, may be required to meet their contractual obligations, despite potential
constraints on their operations and/or financial stability. Either outcome could adversely impact performance of the Investment Funds, Direct Investments and/or the Fund.

 
Note 10 – Other agreements

 
UMB Fund Services, Inc. (“UMBFS”) serves as the Fund’s fund accountant, transfer agent and administrator; UMB Bank, n.a., an affiliate of UMBFS, serves as the Fund’s
custodian. The Fund’s allocated fees incurred for administrative and custodian services for the year ended March 31, 2021, are reported on the Consolidated Statement of
Operations.

 
Note 11 – Commitments

 
As of March 31, 2021, the Fund has funded $95,243,028 or 81.2% of the $117,261,130 total commitments to private equity investments.

 
Note 12 – Derivatives and Hedging Disclosures

 
Derivatives and Hedging requires enhanced disclosures about the Fund’s derivative and hedging activities, including how such activities are accounted for and their effects on
the Fund’s financial position, performance and cash flows. The Fund invested in options during the period January 4, 2021 through March 31, 2021.

 
From time to time in its sole discretion, the Adviser may employ various hedging techniques in an attempt to reduce certain potential risks to which the Fund’s portfolio may be
exposed. These hedging techniques may involve the use of derivative instruments, including swaps and other arrangements such as exchange-listed and over-the-counter put and
call options, rate caps, floors and collars, and futures and forward contracts. The Fund may also purchase and write (sell) options contracts on swaps, commonly referred to as
swaptions.

 
A Portfolio Fund may utilize options contracts, futures contracts, and options on futures contracts. It also may use so-called “synthetic” options or other derivative instruments
written by broker-dealers or other financial intermediaries. Options transactions may be effected on securities exchanges or in the over-the-counter market. When options are
purchased over-the-counter, the Portfolio Fund’s portfolio bears the risk that the counterparty that wrote the option will be unable or unwilling to perform its obligations under
the option contract. Such options may also be illiquid, and, in such cases, a Portfolio Fund may have difficulty closing out its position. Over-the-counter options purchased and
sold by the Portfolio Fund also may include options on baskets of specific securities.

 
A Portfolio Fund may purchase call and put options on specific securities or currencies and may write and sell covered or uncovered call and put options for hedging purposes
and non-hedging purposes to pursue its investment objective. A put option gives the purchaser of the option the right to sell, and obligates the writer to buy, the underlying
security at a stated exercise price at any time prior to the expiration of the option. A call option gives the purchaser of the option the right to buy, and obligates the writer to sell,
the underlying security at a stated exercise price at any time prior to the expiration of the option.
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Note 12 – Derivatives and Hedging Disclosures (continued)

 
The effects of these derivative instruments on the Fund’s financial position and financial performance as reflected in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities and Statement of
Operations are presented in the tables below. There was no realized gain/loss related to derivatives during the period January 4, 2021 through March 31, 2021. The fair values of
derivative instruments as of March 31, 2021 by risk category are as follows:

 
 Asset Derivatives
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments Statement of Asset and Liabilities Location  Value  
Foreign exchange contracts (currency risk) Purchased options, at value  $ 63,110 
Total  $ 63,110 
 

Change in Unrealized Appreciation/Depreciation on Derivatives Recognized in Income

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments  Purchased 
Options  

Foreign exchange contracts (currency risk)  $ (2,299)
Total  $ (2,299)
 
The quarterly average volumes of derivative instruments as of March 31, 2021 are as follows:

 
Derivatives not designated 
as hedging instruments      

Foreign exchange contracts (currency risk) Purchased options Notional value  $ 159,860,000 
 
Note 13 – LIBOR Phaseout Risk

 
The United Kingdom’s Financial Conduct Authority, which regulates London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”), has announced plans to phase out the use of LIBOR by the
end of 2021. There remains uncertainty regarding the future use of LIBOR and the nature of any replacement rate. The transition process away from LIBOR may involve,
among other things, increased volatility or illiquidity in markets for instruments that currently rely on LIBOR. The transition process may also result in a reduction in the value
of certain instruments held by the Fund or reduce the effectiveness of related Fund transactions such as hedges. Volatility, the potential reduction in value, and/or the hedge
effectiveness of financial instruments may be heightened for financial instruments that do not include fallback provisions that address the cessation of LIBOR. Any potential
effects of the transition away from LIBOR on any of the financial instruments in which the Fund invests, as well as other unforeseen effects, could result in losses to the Fund.

 
Note 14 – Indemnifications

 
In the normal course of business, the Fund enters into contracts that contain a variety of representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications. The Fund’s
maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown, as any such exposure would result from future claims that may be, but have not yet been, made against the Fund
based on events which have not yet occurred. However, based on the Adviser’s experience, the Fund believes the risk of loss from these arrangements to be remote.

 
Note 15 – Significant Shareholder

 
As of March 31, 2021, the Fund has a Shareholder that holds 68% of the outstanding Shares of the Fund. A significant redemption by this shareholder could affect the Fund’s
liquidity and the future viability of the Fund.
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Note 16 – Subsequent Events

 
The Fund has adopted financial reporting rules regarding subsequent events which require an entity to recognize in the financial statements the effects of all subsequent events
that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet. Management has evaluated the Fund’s related events and transactions that occurred
through the date of issuance of the Fund’s financial statements.

 
The Board authorized the Fund to offer to repurchase Shares from Members in an amount up to approximately 5.00% of the net assets of the Fund (or approximately $6,876,000
as of January 31, 2021), with a June 30, 2021 valuation date. Members that desired to tender Shares for repurchase were required to do so by April 26, 2021. There were no
tender requests received for either the Class R shares or Class I Shares.

 
Effective April 1, 2021, there were subscriptions to the Fund in the amount of $150,000 for Class R and $5,050,000 for Class I.

 
Effective May 1, 2021, there were subscriptions to the Fund in the amount of $100,000 for Class R and $11,945,000 for Class I.

 
As of April 29, 2021 the Fund secured a committed, secured line of credit (the “Facility”) with Investec Bank PLC. The Facility has the following terms: (a) an Arrangement fee
of $420,000 constituting one hundred twenty (120) basis points (1.20%) of the aggregate Commitment in effect on the Closing Date, (b) an Administrative Agency Fee of
$50,000 per annum, (c) an Extension Fee an amount equal to fifty (50) basis points (0.50%) of the aggregate Commitment then in effect, and (d) a commitment amount of
$35,000,000.

 
There were no other events or transactions that occurred during this period that materially impacted the amounts or disclosures in the Fund’s consolidated financial statements.
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The identity of the Trustees and officers of the Fund and brief biographical information regarding each such person during the past five years is set forth below. Each Trustee
who is deemed to be an “interested person” of the Fund, as defined in the 1940 Act (an “Interested Trustee”), is indicated by an asterisk. The business address of each person
listed below is c/o UMB Fund Services, Inc. 235 W. Galena St. Milwaukee, WI 53212. The Fund’s Statement of Additional Information includes additional information about
the membership of the Board.

 
INDEPENDENT TRUSTEES

NAME, ADDRESS 
AND YEAR 
OF BIRTH

POSITION(S) 
WITH THE 

FUND

LENGTH 
OF TIME 

SERVICED*
PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION(S) 

DURING PAST 5 YEARS

PORTFOLIOS 
IN FUND 

COMPLEX 
OVERSEEN 

BY TRUSTEE

OTHER 
DIRECTORSHIPS** 

HELD BY 
TRUSTEE

Thomas J. Allingham II
Birth Year: 1953
 
c/o UMB Fund Services,
Inc.
235 W. Galena St.
Milwaukee, WI 53212

Trustee Since Inception Retired. Partner, Skadden, Arps, Slate,
Meagher & Flom LLP (1983 – 2016)

1 Hamilton Lane Alliance
Holdings I, Inc. (since

2021)

Holly Flanagan
Birth Year: 1971
 
c/o UMB Fund Services,
Inc.
235 W. Galena St.
Milwaukee, WI 53212

Trustee Since Inception Managing Director of Gabriel Investments
(since 2013)

1 Hamilton Lane Alliance
Holdings I, Inc. (since

2021); FS Credit Income
Fund (since 2017);and FS
Multi-Alternative Income

Fund (since 2018)

Jeff Ladouceur
Birth Year: 1970
 
c/o UMB Fund Services,
Inc.
235 W. Galena St.
Milwaukee, WI 53212

Trustee Since Inception Director of SEI Investments (since 2010) 1 N/A

 
 

* Each Trustee serves an indefinite term, until his or her successor is elected.
 

** Includes any company with a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), or subject to the
requirements of Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act or any company registered under the Investment Company Act.
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INTERESTED TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS

NAME, ADDRESS AND
YEAR OF BIRTH

POSITION(S)
WITH THE FUND

LENGTH OF
TIME SERVICED*

PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION(S) DURING
PAST 5 YEARS

PORTFOLIOS IN
FUND COMPLEX
OVERSEEN BY
TRUSTEE OR

OFFICER

OTHER
DIRECTORSHIPS**

HELD BY TRUSTEE OR
OFFICER

Andrew Schardt
Birth Year: 1978
 
c/o UMB Fund Services,
Inc.
235 W. Galena St.
Milwaukee, WI 53212

Trustee and President Since Inception Managing Director and Global Head of Direct
Credit at Hamilton Lane Advisors, L.L.C.
(since 2008)

1 N/A

Frederick Shaw
Birth Year: 1975
 
c/o UMB Fund Services,
Inc.
235 W. Galena St.
Milwaukee, WI 53212

Trustee Since Inception Chief Risk Officer (since April 2020);
Managing Director, Head of Risk,
Compliance and Strategic Integrations (2019
– 2020); Managing Director, Global Chief
Compliance and Anti-Money Laundering
Officer (2017 – 2019); and Principal, Director
of Compliance (2011 – 2017) at Hamilton
Lane Advisors, L.L.C.

1 N/A

Elina Magid
Birth Year: 1980
 
c/o UMB Fund Services,
Inc.
235 W. Galena St.
Milwaukee, WI 53212

Treasurer Since Inception Head of Fund Accounting at Hamilton Lane
Advisors, L.L.C. (since 2017); Senior
Manager at Deloitte & Touche LLP (2002 –
2017)

1 N/A

Adam B. Shane
Birth Year: 1983
 
c/o UMB Fund Services,
Inc.
235 W. Galena St.
Milwaukee, WI 53212

Secretary Since Inception Attorney at Hamilton Lane Advisors, L.L.C.
(since 2014)

1 N/A
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INTERESTED TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS

NAME, ADDRESS AND
YEAR OF BIRTH

POSITION(S)
WITH THE FUND

LENGTH OF
TIME SERVICED*

PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION(S) DURING
PAST 5 YEARS

PORTFOLIOS IN
FUND COMPLEX
OVERSEEN BY
TRUSTEE OR

OFFICER

OTHER
DIRECTORSHIPS**

HELD BY TRUSTEE OR
OFFICER

Gerard Scarpati
Birth Year: 1955
 
c/o UMB Fund Services,
Inc.
235 W. Galena St.
Milwaukee, WI 53212

Chief Compliance
Officer

Since Inception Compliance Director at Vigilant Compliance,
LLC (since 2010)

1 N/A

 
 

* Each Trustee serves an indefinite term, until his or her successor is elected.
 

** Includes any company with a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act or subject to the requirements of Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act or
any company registered under the Investment Company Act.

 
Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures

 
A description of the Fund’s proxy voting policies and procedures related to portfolio securities is available without charge, upon request, by calling the Fund at (844) 626-7246
or on the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission’s (“SEC”) website at www.sec.gov.

 
Proxy Voting Record

 
Information regarding how the Fund voted proxies for portfolio securities, if applicable, during the most recent 12-month period ended June 30, is also available, without charge
and upon request by calling the Fund (844) 626-7246 or by accessing the Fund’s Form N-PX on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.

 
Availability of Quarterly Portfolio Schedules

 
The Fund files its complete schedule of portfolio holdings with the SEC for the first and third quarters of each fiscal year on Form N-PORT. The Fund’s Form N-PORT is
available on the SEC website at www.sec.gov. or without charge and upon request by calling the Fund at (877) 779-1999.
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March 31, 2021 (Unaudited)
 

 
PRIVACY NOTICE

 
FACTS WHAT DOES THE FUND DO WITH YOUR PERSONAL INFORMATION?

Why?
Financial companies choose how they share your personal information. Federal law gives consumers the right to limit some but not all sharing.
Federal law also requires us to tell you how we collect, share, and protect your personal information. Please read this notice carefully to
understand what we do.

What?

The types of personal information we collect and share depend on the product or service you have with us. This information can include:
 

● Social Security number
● Account balances
● Account transactions
● Transaction history
● Wire transfer instructions
● Checking account information

 
When you are no longer our customer, we continue to share your information as described in this notice.

How? All financial companies need to share customers’ personal information to run their everyday business. In the section below, we list the reasons
financial companies can share their customers’ personal information; the reasons funds choose to share; and whether you can limit this sharing.

 
Reasons we can share your personal information Does the Fund share? Can you limit this sharing?

For our everyday business purposes –
such as to process your transactions, maintain your account(s), respond to court orders and legal
investigations, or report to credit bureaus

Yes No

For our marketing purposes –
to offer our products and services to you No We don’t share

For joint marketing with other financial companies No We don’t share

For our affiliates’ everyday business purposes –
information about your transactions and experiences Yes No

For our affiliates’ everyday business purposes –
information about your creditworthiness No We don’t share

For our affiliates to market to you No We don’t share

For nonaffiliates to market to you No We don’t share
 

Questions? Call 1-877-779-1999
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What we do

How does the Fund protect my personal
information?

To protect your personal information from unauthorized access and use, we use security measures that comply with
federal law. These measures include computer safeguards and secured files and buildings.

How does the Fund collect my personal
information?

We collect your personal information, for example, when you
 

● Open an account
● Provide account information
● Give us your contact information
● Make a wire transfer
● Tell us where to send the money

 
We also collect your information from others, such as credit bureaus, affiliates, or other companies.

Why can’t I limit all sharing? Federal law gives you the right to limit only
 

● Sharing for affiliates’ everyday business purposes – information about your creditworthiness
● Affiliates from using your information to market to you
● Sharing for nonaffiliates to market to you

 
State laws and individual companies may give you additional rights to limit sharing.

Definitions

Affiliates Companies related by common ownership or control. They can be financial and nonfinancial companies.
 
Our affiliates include companies such as Hamilton Lane Advisors, LLC.

Nonaffiliates Companies not related by common ownership or control. They can be financial and nonfinancial companies.
 

The Fund doesn’t share with nonaffiliates so they can market to you.

Joint marketing A formal agreement between nonaffiliated financial companies that together market financial products or services
to you.

 
The Fund doesn’t jointly market.
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APPENDIX B

 
Hamilton Lane Advisors, L.L.C. 

PROXY POLICY AND PROCEDURE
 

INTRODUCTION
 
Hamilton Lane Advisors, LLC (“Hamilton”) acts as either the advisor to a number of registered investment companies (the “Funds”). In accord with Rule 206(4)-6 of the
Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended, Hamilton has adopted the following policies and procedures to provide information on Hamilton’s proxy policy generally as well
as on procedures for each of the Funds specifically (the “Proxy Policy and Procedure”). These policies and procedures apply only to Hamilton.
 
GENERAL GUIDELINES
 
Hamilton’s Proxy Policy and Procedure is designed to ensure that proxies are voted in a manner (i) reasonably believed to be in the best interests of the Funds and their
shareholders1 and (ii) not affected by any material conflict of interest. Hamilton considers shareholders1 best economic interests over the long term (i.e. addresses the common
interest of all shareholders over time). Although shareholders may have differing political or social interests or values, their economic interest is generally uniform.
 
Hamilton has adopted voting guidelines to assist in making voting decisions on common issues. The guidelines are designed to address those securities in which the Funds
generally invest and may be revised in Hamilton’s discretion. Any non-routine matters not addressed by the proxy voting guidelines are addressed on a case-by-case basis, taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances at the time of the vote, particularly where such matters have a potential for major economic impact on the issuer’s structure or
operations. In making voting determinations, Hamilton typically will rely on the individual portfolio managers who invest in and track particular companies as they are the most
knowledgeable about, and best suited to make decisions regarding, particular proxy matters. In addition, Hamilton may conduct research internally and/or use the resources of an
independent research consultant. Hamilton may also consider other materials such as studies of corporate governance and/or analyses of shareholder and management proposals
by a certain sector of companies and may engage in dialogue with an issuer’s management.
 
Hamilton acknowledges its responsibility to identify material conflicts of interest related to voting proxies. Hamilton’s employees are required to disclose to the Chief
Compliance Officer any personal conflicts, such as officer or trustee positions held by them, their spouses or close relatives, in any publicly traded company. Conflicts based on
business relationships with Hamilton, any affiliate or any person associated with Hamilton will be considered only to the extent that Hamilton has actual knowledge of such
relationships. Hamilton then takes appropriate steps to address identified conflicts. Typically, in those instances when a proxy vote may present a conflict between the interests of
the Fund, on the one hand, and Hamilton’s interests or the interests of a person affiliated with Hamilton on the other, Hamilton will abstain from making a voting decision and
will document the decision and reasoning for doing so.
 
In some cases, the cost of voting a proxy may outweigh the expected benefits. For example, casting a vote on a foreign security may involve additional costs such as hiring a
translator or traveling to the foreign country to vote the security in person. Hamilton may abstain from voting a proxy if the effect on shareholders’ economic interests or the
value of the portfolio holding is indeterminable or insignificant.
 
In certain cases, securities on loan as part of a securities lending program may not be voted. Nothing in the proxy voting policies shall obligate Hamilton to exercise voting rights
with respect to a portfolio security if it is prohibited by the terms of the security or by applicable law or otherwise.
Hamilton will not discuss with members of the public how they intend to vote on any particular proxy proposal.
 
 

1 Actions taken in accord with the best interests of the Funds and their shareholders are those which align most closely with the Funds’ stated investment objectives and
strategies.
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ISS PROXYEDGE
 
Hamilton has entered into a contractual relationship with Institutional Shareholder Services Inc. (“ISS”) through which ISS provides certain proxy management services to
Hamilton’s portfolio management teams. Specifically, ISS (i) provides access to the ISS ProxyExchange web-based voting and research platform to access vote
recommendations, research reports, execute vote instructions and run reports relevant to Subscriber’s proxy voting environment; (ii) implements and maps Hamilton’s
designated proxy voting policies to applicable accounts and generates vote recommendations based on the application of such policies; and (iii) monitors Hamilton’s incoming
ballots, performs ballot-to-account reconciliations with Hamilton and its third party providers to help ensure that ISS is receiving all ballots for which Hamilton has voting
rights.
 
ISS provides two options for how proxy ballots are executed:
 
 1. Implied Consent: ISS executes ballots on Hamilton’s behalf based on policy guidelines chosen at the time Hamilton entered into the relationship with ISS.
 
 2. Mandatory Signoff: ISS is not permitted to mark or process any ballot on Hamilton’s behalf without first receiving Hamilton’s specific voting instructions via

ProxyExchange.
 
Hamilton has opted for Option 1. Implied Consent and in so doing has chosen to allow ISS to vote proxies on its behalf “with management’s recommendations.” Hamilton has
the option however to change its vote from the “with management’s recommendations” default at any point prior to the voting deadline if the portfolio managers following the
subject company determine it is in the best interests of the Funds and their shareholders to do so. In those instances when the subject company’s management has not provided a
voting recommendation, Hamilton will either vote based on its own determination of what would align most closely with the best interests of the Funds and their shareholders or
will opt to allow ISS to submit an “abstain” vote on its behalf. In addition, in those limited instances when share blocking2 may apply, Hamilton has instructed ISS not to cast a
vote on Hamilton’s behalf unless Hamilton provides specific instructions via ProxyExchange.
 

FUND-SPECIFIC POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
 
Hamilton Lane Private Assets Fund (“HLPAF”)
 
HLPAF is a “fund of funds” that invests primarily in general or limited partnerships, funds, corporations, trusts or other investment vehicles (collectively, “Investment Funds”).
While it is unlikely that HLPAF will receive notices or proxies from Investment Funds (or in connection with any other portfolio securities), to the extent that HLPAF does
receive such notices or proxies and ICAF has voting interests in such Investment Funds, the responsibility for decisions regarding proxy voting for securities held by HLPAF lies
with Hamilton as HLPAF’s advisor. Hamilton will vote such proxies in accordance with the proxy policies and procedures noted above.
 
HLPAF will be required to file Form N-PX with its complete proxy voting record for the twelve months ended June 30th, no later than August 31st of each year. The Fund’s
Form N PX filing will be available: (i) without charge, upon request, by calling 1.877.779.1999 or (ii) by visiting the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.
 
 

 
2 Proxy voting in certain countries requires share blocking. Shareholders wishing to vote their proxies must deposit their shares shortly before the meeting date with a

designated depositary. During this blocking period, any shares held by the designated depositary cannot be sold until the meeting has taken place and the shares have been
returned to Vivaldi’s custodian banks. Vivaldi generally opts not to participate in share blocking proxies given these restrictions on their ability to trade.
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All Other Funds
 
With the exception of the Hamilton Merger Arbitrage Fund, the Funds for which Hamilton is presently either an advisor are managed by multiple internal and external portfolio
management teams. As is noted above, the policies and procedures outlined within this Proxy Policy and Procedure apply to those securities being held in that portion of the
Funds’ portfolios managed by a Hamilton portfolio manager only.
 
Each Fund will be required to file Form N-PX annually, with its complete proxy voting record for the twelve months immediately prior to the Fund’s year-end, no later than
sixty (60) days following the Fund’s year-end. The Fund’s Form N-PX filing will be available: (i) without charge, upon request, from the Fund’s administrator or (ii) by visiting
the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.
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